
 1 

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2020 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

4:30 P.M.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

CLOSED SESSION – pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and (a)(4) 

 

5:30 P.M.  INVOCATION – Rev. Michael Kimbrell, Doubs Chapel United Methodist Church 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Randy Gould, Public Works Director 

 

I. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 

 

II. ADDITIONAL AGENDA  

 

CHAIRMAN – Does any Commissioner have a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board will 

address in this meeting? 

 

III. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate 

discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of Commissioners. 

 

A. Minutes: October 6, 2020 Regular Meeting 

B. Minutes: October 8, 2020 Special Meeting and Closed Session 

C. Minutes: October 14, 2020 Special Meeting and Closed Session 

D. Budget Amendments 

E. Digital Learning Invoices for Moore County Schools 

F. Tax Releases/Refunds – September 2020 

G. NC Cooperative Extension MOU Modification 

H. FY20 5311 CARES Act Program Supplemental Agreement for MCTS 

I. Due Diligence Extension Contract Amendment – Morris Property 

J. Amendment to Riley Paving Contract for Water Pollution Control Plant 

K. Contract with Grace Paving for Public Works 

 

IV. RECOGNITIONS 

 

V. PRESENTATIONS 

 

A. Health Department – COVID-19 Update (Robert Wittmann, Health Director) 

 

 

 



 2 

VI. QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS 

 

A. Quasi-Judicial Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request: Major Conventional 

Subdivision Preliminary Plat Approval – Leatherwood (Debra Ensminger, 

Planning/Transportation Director) 

 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

A. Public Hearing/GIS – Amendment to the Moore County Road Name and Addressing 

Ordinance (Rachel Patterson, GIS Manager) 

 

B. Public Hearing/Planning – Request for General Use Rezoning: Rural Agricultural 

Conditional Use District – Farm Use (RA-CUD) to Residential and Agricultural – 40 

(RA-40) (Debra Ensminger, Planning/Transportation Director) 

 

C. Public Hearing/Planning – Request for Approval of Unified Development Ordinance 

Text Amendments (Debra Ensminger, Planning/Transportation Director) 

 

D. Public Hearing/Planning – Request for Approval of Unified Development Ordinance 

Text Amendments – Statutory and Quarterly Updates (Debra Ensminger, 

Planning/Transportation Director) 

 

VIII. OLD BUSINESS 

 

IX. NEW BUSINESS 

 

A. Public Works – Request for Approval of Agreement for Water Pollution Control Plant 

Raw Sewage Valve Replacement Project (Randy Gould, Public Works Director) 

 

X. APPOINTMENTS 

 

A. Sandhills Community Action Program Board 

 

XI. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 

 

XII. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

XIII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 

XIV. CLOSED SESSION – if necessary 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS: 

 

▪ Pre-Agenda, Thursday, October 29, 9:00am (Quis / Ritter) 

▪ Special Meeting, Thursday, October 29, 10:00am 

▪ Regular Meeting, Tuesday, November 3, 10:30am 

 



 3 

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES 

MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

The Moore County Board of Commissioners is committed to allowing members of the public an opportunity to offer comments and suggestions for 

the efficient and effective administration of government.  In addition to public hearings, a special time is set aside for the purpose of receiving such 

comments and suggestions.  All comments and suggestions addressed to the Board during the Public Comment Period shall be subject to the 

following procedures: 

 

1. The Public Comment period will be held at the beginning of the Board meeting.  The comment period will be limited to a maximum of 

thirty minutes. 

 

2. Persons who wish to address the Board during the Public Comment Period will register on a sign-up sheet available on the table 

outside the entrance door to the Commissioners’ Meeting Room indicating contact information and topic.  Sign-up sheets will be 

available beginning 30 minutes before the start of the meeting.  No one will be allowed to have his/her name placed on the list by 

telephone request to County Staff. 

 

3. Each person signed up to speak will have three (3) minutes to make his/her remarks.  Each person signed up to speak will only be 

entitled to the time allotted to each speaker and one additional time period which may be yielded to him/her by another individual who 

has also signed up to speak on a particular topic. 

 

4. Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson in the order in which their names appear on the sign-up sheet.  Speakers 

will address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room and begin their remarks by stating their name and address. 

 

5. Public comment is not intended to require the Board to answer any impromptu questions.  Speakers will address all comments to the 

Board as a whole and not one individual commissioner.  Discussions between speakers and members of the audience will not be 

allowed. 

 

6. Speakers will be courteous in their language and presentation. Matters or comments which are harmful, discriminatory or 

embarrassing to any citizens, official or employee of Moore County shall not be allowed.  Speaker must be respectful and courteous in 

their remarks and must refrain from personal attacks and the use of profanity. 

 

7. Only one speaker will be acknowledged at a time.  If the time period runs out before all persons who have signed up get to speak, 

those names will be carried over to the next Public Comment Period. 

 

8. Any applause will be held until the end of the Public Comment Period. 

 

9. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and 

documents with the Clerk to the Board. 

 

10. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking public office, including 

the candidacy of the person addressing the Board; matters which are closed session matters, including but not limited to matters 

within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, matters which are made 

confidential by law; matters which are the subject of public hearings. 

 

11. Information sheets outlining the process for the public’s participation in Board meetings will also be available in the rear of the 

Commissioner’s Meeting Room. 

 

12. Action on items brought up during the Public Comment Period will be at the discretion of the Board. 

  

Adopted on the 5th day of March 2007 by a 5 to 0 vote of the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 

 

Revised on the 7th day of April 2015. 

 

Revised on the 7th day of February 2017. 

 
 

 



 1 

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2020 

 
REGULAR MEETING, 10:30 AM 

 
 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners convened for a regular meeting at 10:30am, Tuesday, October 6, 
2020 in the Commissioners Meeting Room of the Historic Courthouse, Carthage, North Carolina.   

 
Commissioners Present: 
Chairman Frank Quis, Vice Chairman Louis Gregory, Jerry Daeke, Otis Ritter 
 
Commissioners Absent: 
Catherine Graham 
 
****************************************************************************************** 
 
Chairman Quis called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone.  Reverend Adam Beddingfield of the 705 
Church of God of Prophecy provided the invocation and GIS Manager Rachel Patterson led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Mr. Keith Clark offered comments. 

 
Chairman Quis asked whether any commissioner had a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board 
would address in the meeting and there was none. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 4-0 to approve 
the following consent agenda items: 
 
Minutes: September 15, 2020 Regular Meeting 
MOU with Moore County Schools and Sandhills Center  
Budget Amendments 
Amendments to FY21 Budget Ordinance 
Lease Agreement with Town of Carthage 
DH Griffin Contract – Demolition of 106 N. Ray St. and 102 McReynolds St. 
Solid Waste Acceptance of COVID-19 Recycling Grant 
Deed of Dedication for Town of Hoffman Wastewater 
Amendment to Planning/Transportation FY 21 Fee Schedule 
Transportation Services Contract with Monarch 
Transportation Services FY22 Memorandum of Understanding with Monarch 
Health Department Additional WIC Funding  

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.A.10/20/2020



 2 

Health Department FY21 CARES 115 Infection Prevention Support Addendum Agreement  
General Fund’s Assigned and Committed Fund Balances as of 6/30/20 
 
The budget amendment for the MCS/Sandhills Center MOU, budget amendments, amended budget ordinance, 
budget amendment for the Solid Waste grant, amended fee schedule, and budget amendment for the assigned 
and committed fund balances are hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendices 
A, B, C, D, E, and F, respectively. 

 
PRESENTATIONS 

 
Health Department – COVID-19 Update 
 
Health Director Robert Wittmann and Deputy Health Director/PIO Matt Garner provided an update regarding 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  Dr. Seth Powers with Moore County Schools was also present and provided an 
update regarding the status of Schools’ attendance options, infection control protocols, tracking, and infection 
rate.  Dr. Powers noted how important and outstanding the Schools’ collaboration with the Health Department 
had been.  Although daily attendance for K-5 students would now be permitted by the Governor, the 
recommendation to the Board of Education by the Health Director was for the current hybrid attendance model 
to be followed for the remainder of the fall semester.  Dr. Powers noted the Board of Education would vote on 
this decision during its regular meeting the next week.  Mr. Garner expressed appreciation to the Moore County 
Schools officials for their cooperation.  Following Dr. Powers’ update, Mr. Wittmann and Mr. Garner discussed 
rapid testing at length, and then provided an update on the current status of infections/deaths from the virus in 
Moore County.  Commissioner Gregory inquired regarding whether testing was optional for long-term care 
facilities and Mr. Garner explained that any of them were subject to mandated biweekly staff testing, and he 
then also explained how testing of residents was handled.  Chairman Quis asked if Mr. Wittmann had anything 
to report to the commissioners from the Board of Health meeting held the prior evening.  Mr. Wittmann 
discussed that the rapid testing information shared was just a snapshot in time and that it was a dynamic 
situation as was the situation with a vaccine, and he said the Health Department staff would keep track of it.  He 
then explained how the COVID vaccine distribution may differ from what was ordinarily done.  Mr. Wittmann 
then encouraged all elected and appointed officials, clergy, etc. in the County to support the 3Ws, encouraged 
everyone to be vaccinated against the flu, and encouraged residents to be tested if they believe they were 
exposed to the virus.  Chairman Quis repeated his earlier question and Mr. Wittmann noted that the Board of 
Commissioners had seen this day a small slice of what had been presented to the Board of Health.  He also said 
the Board Chair had appointed members to committees that would be working on different aspects of interest to 
the Board of Health (i.e. vaccines, public information, etc.).  He said he would be a liaison and the Board of 
Health and the Board of Commissioners would stay informed.  Chairman Quis thanked Mr. Wittmann and Mr. 
Garner for the information and thanked them also for their cooperation with Moore County Schools.  Mr. 
Wittmann’s remarks (provided by him on a written copy) and the presentation provided by him and Mr. Garner 
are hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix G. 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS 

 
Call to Quasi-Judicial Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request: Major Conventional Subdivision 
Preliminary Plat Approval – Leatherwood 
 
Planning/Transportation Director Debra Ensminger requested the Board call a quasi-judicial hearing regarding a 
Conditional Use Permit request for a subdivision.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Gregory, seconded by 
Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to call for a Quasi-Judicial Hearing on October 20, 2020 at 5:30pm 
for a Conditional Use Permit Request: Major Conventional Subdivision Preliminary Plat Approval 
(Leatherwood) to be located on Vass-Carthage Road. 

 



 3 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Call to Public Hearing/GIS – Amendment to the Moore County Road Name and Addressing Ordinance 
 
GIS Manager Rachel Patterson requested the Board call a public hearing regarding an amendment to the Road 
Name and Addressing Ordinance.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Commissioner 
Gregory, the Board voted 4-0 to call a public hearing for October 20, 2020, at 5:30 pm to consider amendments 
to the Moore County Road Name and Addressing Ordinance to add one (1) road to the ordinance. 
 
Call to Public Hearing/Planning – Request for General Use Rezoning: Rural Agricultural Conditional Use 
District – Farm Use (RA-CUD) to Residential and Agricultural – 40 (RA-40) 
 
Planning/Transportation Director Debra Ensminger requested the Board call a public hearing regarding a 
General Use Rezoning request.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Commissioner 
Gregory, the Board voted 4-0 to call for a Public Hearing on October 20, 2020 at 5:30pm to consider a General 
Use Rezoning Request of 42.94 acres (Tracts 1, 3, & 4) located on NC Hwy 22 and Blues Siding Road from 
Rural Agricultural - CUD (Farm Use) to Rural and Agricultural – 40 (RA-40). The properties are further 
described as Par ID’s #00036767 & # 95000186 owned by Michael & Judy Rowland (Tract 1) per Deed Book 
1118, Page 415 & Deed Book 1072, Page 111, Matthew & Jamie Encinosa (tract 3) pe deed Book 5337, Page 
91 and Alex & Lara Hardy (Tract 4) per Deed Book 5301, Page 400. 

 
Call to Public Hearing/Planning – Request for Approval of Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendments 
 
Planning/Transportation Director Debra Ensminger requested the Board call a public hearing regarding text 
amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance regarding Highway Corridor Overlay District development 
standards.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Gregory, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 
4-0 to call for a public hearing on Tuesday, October 20, 2020 to consider amendments to the Moore County 
Unified Development Ordinance regarding the Highway Overlay District development standards. 

 
Call to Public Hearing/Planning – Request for Approval of Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendments 
– Statutory and Quarterly Updates 
 
Planning/Transportation Director Debra Ensminger requested the Board call a public hearing regarding text 
amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance to address statutory changes and quarterly updates.  Upon 
motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 4-0 to call for a 
Public Hearing on October 20, 2020 at 5:30 pm for the consideration of amendments to the Moore County 
Unified Development Ordinance due to recent Statutory Updates per Session Law 2019-111 and Session Law 
2019-79 and Quarterly Updates. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Administration – Request for Approval of Correspondence Regarding High Speed Internet Services 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest discussed internet service needs and funding opportunities and introduced 
Information Technology Director Chris Butts to give a presentation regarding broadband internet services in 
Moore County.  Mr. Butts’ presentation is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as 
Appendix H.  Following the presentation, Mr. Vest recommended the Board authorize letters to be sent to state 
and federal legislative representatives regarding the availability and necessity of broadband.  Upon motion 
made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to the letters to 
representatives encouraging them to support increasing access to broadband.  Copies of the letters are also 
incorporated into these minutes under Appendix H with Mr. Butts’ presentation.  Chairman Quis inquired about 



 4 

a recent grant awarded to Randolph Communications and how it would affect the number of people with high-
speed internet.  Mr. Vest reviewed the areas that would be impacted and said he would get the information for 
the commissioners.  Mr. Vest also noted another funding opportunity, the GREAT grant, that would be 
available to Tier 3 counties in the rural census tract areas.  He shared that he had reached out to the electric 
coops to ensure their awareness of this grant opportunity. 

 
APPOINTMENTS 

 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 4-0 to 
reappoint Annette McGraw to the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council for a two-year term expiring October 31, 
2022. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest noted that a draft agenda for a work session planned for October 29 had been 
placed at each commissioner’s seat and he invited the Board’s feedback regarding the agenda. 
 
Mr. Vest noted that it was Commissioner Daeke’s birthday and invited Public Works Director Randy Gould to 
lead everyone in the Happy Birthday song for Commissioner Daeke.   
 
COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
Chairman Quis shared that Senator McInnis and Representative Boles had given the County a certified copy of 
the legislation regarding economic incentives that would be offered to the United States Golf Association in its 
location to Pinehurst.   
 
Commissioner Daeke inquired regarding a special meeting scheduled for October 8 and Mr. Vest offered 
additional information. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, Chairman Quis adjourned the October 6, 2020, regular meeting of the Moore 
County Board of Commissioners at 12:18pm. 
 
 
 
        __________________________________________ 
        Francis R. Quis, Jr., Chairman 
 
__________________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 



 

1 
 

 

MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SPECIAL MEETING 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2020, 1:30 PM 
 

The Moore County Board of Commissioners convened for a special meeting on Thursday, October 8, 2020 at 
1:30pm at 992 Farm Life School Road, Carthage, North Carolina.     

Commissioners Present:  Chairman Frank Quis, Vice Chairman Louis Gregory, Jerry Daeke, Catherine 
Graham 

Commissioners Absent:  Otis Ritter 

Chairman Quis called the meeting to order.   

Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 4-0 to enter 
into closed session pursuant to N.C.G.S 143-318.11(a)(3) to preserve the attorney client privilege and regarding 
the case C.B. Ragsdale and Steve Jones v. Moore County. 

Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 4-0 to come 
out of closed session and seal the minutes. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business, upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner 
Daeke, the Board voted 4-0 to adjourn the October 8, 2020, special meeting of the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners at 1:54pm. 

 

        __________________________________________ 
        Francis R. Quis, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.B.10/20/2020



 

1 
 

 

MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

SPECIAL MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2020, 10:30 AM 

 

The Moore County Board of Commissioners convened for a special meeting on Wednesday, October 14, 2020 

at 10:30am remotely via conference call.     

Commissioners Present (all by telephone):  Chairman Frank Quis, Vice Chairman Louis Gregory, Jerry 

Daeke, Catherine Graham, Otis Ritter 

Chairman Quis called the meeting to order and confirmed all members’ presence. 

Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to enter 

into closed session pursuant to N.C.G.S 143-318.11(a)(3) to preserve the attorney client privilege regarding the 

case C.B. Ragsdale and Steve Jones v. Moore County. 

At 11:00am, Chairman Quis confirmed all members’ presence and upon motion made by Commissioner 

Graham, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to come out of closed session and seal the 

minutes. 

Chairman Quis welcomed to the meeting Mr. Gerald Ross and any other citizens who may be in attendance.  

Chairman Quis noted the Board had the opportunity to discuss a proposed settlement agreement in closed 

session and asked whether anyone had any further questions, and there were none.  Upon motion made by 

Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Commissioner Gregory, the Board voted 5-0 to approve a settlement 

agreement as presented between C.B. Ragsdale and Steve Jones, plaintiffs, and the County of Moore, 

defendants.  Chairman Quis provided Mr. Ross opportunity to comment.  Mr. Ross asked if the Board was 

accepting the settlement and Chairman Quis confirmed that action.  Ms. Leland noted a copy could be 

forwarded to Mr. Ross once fully executed.  Mr. Ross had no further comment. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business, upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner 

Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn the October 14, 2020, special meeting of the Moore County Board of 

Commissioners at 11:08am. 

 

        __________________________________________ 

        Francis R. Quis, Jr., Chairman 

 

 

________________________________________ 

Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.C.10/20/2020



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.D.











clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.E.









clerktoboard
Typewritten Text

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.F.10/20/2020















clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.G.





























                                Agenda Item:                             
                                                                                                     Meeting Date: October 20, 2020                                  

 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Sonia Biggs 
   Moore County Transportation Manager 
 
DATE:  September 25, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: FY2020 5311 Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES 

ACT) Program Supplemental Agreement 
 
PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
 
REQUEST 
Request the Board of Commissioners to approve the FY20 205311 Coronavirus Aid, relief and 
Economic Security (CARES ACT) Program Supplemental Agreement between Moore County 
Transportation Services and North Carolina Department of Transportation. 
 
BACKGROUND  
On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 
(CARES) Act into law. All counties receiving Section 5311/5307 grant funds are eligible to apply for 
CARES Act funding. Moore County Transportation Services receives Section 5311 grant funding. On 
June 16, 2020, The Moore County Board of Commissioners approved to enter the Agreement with 
North Carolina Department of Transportation to receive $297,268.00 in CARES Act funding. Moore 
County Transportation Services has been approved for additional funds in the amount of $231,785.00. 
The total CARES Act funding for FY2020 is $529,053.00 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Upon approval Moore County Transportation Services will forward the executed FY20 5311 CARES 
ACT Program Supplemental Agreement to North Carolina Department of Transportation. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT  
The additional grant amount for FY20 is $231,785.00, 100% Federal dollars and will not require a 
local match. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY 

1) Make a motion to approve the FY20 5311 CARES ACT Program Supplemental Agreement 
between Moore County Transportation Services and North Carolina Department of 
Transportation in the amount of $231,785.00. 

2) Make a motion to allow the Moore County Board of Commissioners chairperson to execute 
the FY20 CARES ACT funding supplemental agreement as requested by the North 
Carolina Department of Transportation.  

 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS
FY20 5311 CARES ACT Program Supplemental Agreement 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.H.



 
AWARDED GRANT INFORMATION FORM 

Including all State and Federal financial assistance 
    
 Financial Assistance Title/Grant Name: CARES Act Operation Funds Section 5311 Grant  
    
 Grantor (State or Federal agency, private foundation etc.): NCDOT  
    
 Grantor Contact Person: Myra Freeman  
    
 Grantor Phone Number /  e-mail: 919-707-4672                                                /msfreeman1@ncdot.gov  
    
 Purpose of Grant Funding: The second allotment of Cares Act Operating 5311 grant will be used for operating and 

ROAP expenses through July 2021 related to COVID-19 
 

    
    
    
 Total Requested: $ 231,785  
    
 Matching Requirement: Local Match:  State Match:  Federal Match: 100%   
    
 Period Covered: January 2020-July 2021  
    
 Grant Number: 20-CA-062-01  
         
 Revenue Code: 23032000 36265     Expenditure Code: 23053000 54950  
    
 1. Does the assistance include Federal funds (funds from State may    
  originate from a Federal agency)?  YES  NO  

  
If yes, list CFDA number (*required, should be provided in information 
received from grantor): 

20.509  

    
 If yes, please provide name of Federal agency: FTA  
    
 2. Does the grant period extend over more than one fiscal year?  YES  NO  
  If Yes, list fiscal years: FY2020 & FY2021   
    
 3. Are you planning to request funds each year?  YES  NO  
 If yes, please indicate fiscal years As long as available  
    
 4. Is this a reimbursement grant?  YES  NO  
 5. What are the reporting requirements? 

                                                                           
 
Monthly                            

   
Quarterly                            

 

                                    
                                                                           

 
Semi-Annually                  

 
At End of Grant 
 

 

 6. Who prepares reports? Sonia Biggs  
    
 7. What, if any, long term commitments for the County are involved if we accept the grant funds, i.e. 

 program continuation after grant funding ceases? 
Grant is through July 2021 

 

 8. List any laws, acts, or regulations specifying performance requirements of the County: 
None additional to existing 

 

 9. Please include any other comments below: 
 
Reimbursement of funds will be on a monthly and quarterly basis 

  

 
* Please attach a copy of your award letter and grant agreement to Financial Services. 



INSTRUCTIONS FOR EXECUTING GRANT AGREEMENTS 

PUBLIC BODY GRANTEES 

 
Included in this correspondence is an electronic file in a PDF format of the grant 
agreement(s) to be executed between the local grant recipient and the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation.   
 
1. The person officially authorized by resolution of the governing body to accept the 

department’s offer of financial assistance should electronically sign each 
agreement where indicated.  The signature must be witnessed.  Stamped 
signatures are not acceptable.   

 

2. Enter your agency’s Federal Tax ID Number and Fiscal Year-End on the 

signature page.  Complete the section on the table for Contract Administrators: 

For the Contractor: “If Delivered by US Postal Service” and “If Delivered by 

Any Other Means”.  
 
3. Do not date the agreements.  This will be done upon execution by the 
  department.     
 
4. Return 1 copy within thirty (30) days via DocuSign. 
 
A fully executed agreement will be returned to you via email and will be available for 
review in EBS upon the approval of your Agreement. 
 
In the event the contract cannot be returned within thirty (30) days, please call me 
immediately at (919) 707-4672.   
 
Please note that the department cannot reimburse the grant recipient for any eligible 
project expenses until the agreements are fully executed.   



 

 

 

  STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

ROY COOPER  J. ERIC BOYETTE 
GOVERNOR   SECRETARY 
 

Mailing Address: 
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
INTEGRATED MOBILITY DIVISION  
1550 MAIL SERVICE CENTER 
RALEIGH, NC 27699-1550 

Telephone: (919) 707-4670 
Fax: (919) 733-1391 

Customer Service:  1-877-368-4968 
 

Website: ncdot.gov 

Location: 
1 SOUTH WILMINGTON STREET 2 

RALEIGH,  NC 27601 
 

 

 
 

August 26, 2020 
 
 
Mr. Frank Quis, Chairman 
Moore County 
P.O. Box 905 
Carthage, North Carolina 28327-0905 
 
RE: FY20 Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES ACT) Program 
Project No: 20-CA-062-01 
WBS Element No:  49233.44.1.2 
Agreement No:  2000040366 
Period of Performance: 1/20/2020 – 6/30/2021 
 
 
Dear Mr. Quis: 
 

On August 14, 2020, the North Carolina Board of Transportation approved additional 
funds in the amount of $231,785 to amend Section 5311 CARES ACT Grant.  
 

Originals of the supplemental agreement to be executed between Moore County and the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation are enclosed.  The resolution authorizes the 
Executive Director to enter into this agreement on behalf of your agency.  
 

The project, WBS, and Agreement number referenced above have been assigned to your 
project.  Please refer to these numbers on all correspondence.  If you have any questions, please 
contact Beth Gay at (919) 707-4691 or Myra Freeman at (919) 707-4672 in the Financial 
Management Section.   
 
 Sincerely,       

  
 Heather J. Hildebrandt 
 Interim Director 
HH\mf 
 
Attachments 



  4
  

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA   NONURBANIZED AREA 
COUNTY OF WAKE     PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
        SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR 
        PUBLIC BODY ORGANIZATIONS 

CORONAVIRUS AID, RELIEF AND 
ECONOMIC SECURITY (CARES ACT) 
PROGRAM – SECTION 5311 
 
CFDA NUMBER:  20.509 

 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

        PROJECT NO. 20-CA-062-01 
and 

        WBS ELEMENT NO:  49233.44.1.2 
                                 

MOORE COUNTY 
 

***************************************************************** 
 THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT entered into this the           day of   
  20           by and between MOORE COUNTY (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor"), 
and the NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (hereinafter referred to 
as the "Department"), witnesseth that: 

 
WHEREAS, the Contractor heretofore entered into an agreement with the Department 
to implement, carry out capital projects funded with Federal Transit Administration 
5311 grant program funds administered by the State; and  
 
WHEREAS, the said agreement dated  JULY 1, 2020 sets forth the purpose of the 
Agreement and the public transportation capital projects and services as described in 
the project application (hereinafter referred to as “Project”) properly prepared, 
endorsed, approved and transmitted by the Contractor to the Department, and states 
the terms and conditions as to the manner in which the Project will be undertaken; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement allows for the Contractor and the Department to revise or 
amend the agreement when there is a change in project circumstances or information 
causing an inconsistency with the terms of the Agreement and requires said 
agreement to be signed by the original signatories or their authorized designees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Contractor and Department find it necessary to revise the Project 
Agreement to correct language in Section 5: Cost of Project/Project Budget; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration that the Department has determined that the 
Agreement be revised as follows: 

That language appearing in Section 5 of the agreement and reading as follows: 
Section 2: Project Implementation.  
 



b. Cost of Project. The total cost of the Project approved by the Department is  
TWO HUNDRED NINETY-SEVEN THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED SIXTY-EIGHT DOLLARS 
($297,268) as set forth in the Project Description and Budget, incorporated into this Agreement 
as Attachment A.  The Department shall provide, from Federal, the percentages of the actual 
net cost of the Project as indicated below, not in excess of the identified amounts for eligible 
administrative, operating, and capital expenses. The Contractor hereby agrees that it will provide 
the percentages of the actual net cost of the Project, as indicated below, and any amounts in 
excess of the Department’s maximum (Federal).  The net cost is the price paid minus any 
refunds, rebates, or other items of value received by the Contractor which have the effect of 
reducing the actual cost.  
 

Operating 
WBS 

Operating 
Total 

Operating  
Federal (100%) 

Operating  
State (0%) 

Operating  
Local (0%) 

49233.44.1.2 $ 297,268 $ 297,268 $0 $0 
Agreement 
#2000040366 

    

Project  
Total 

Project  
Total 

Project  
Total Federal  

Project  
Total State 

Project  
Total Local  

 $ 297,268 $ 297,268 $0 $0 
  

Be, and hereby amended and revised to read as follows: 
 
Section 5. Project Implementation.  
 

b. Cost of Project. The Project Operating budget is increased by $231,785 to provide 
additional funding operational needs due to Covid-19.  The project budget is 
amended as follows:  Federal:  $529,053, State:  $0, Local:  $0.  
 

c. The project budget is hereby amended to incorporate the total cost of the Project 
approved by the Department as FIVE HUNDRED TWENTY-NINE THOUSAND 
FIFTY-THREE DOLLARS ($529,053)  The Department shall provide, from Federal 
funds, the percentages of the actual net cost of the Project as indicated below, not 
in excess of the identified amounts for eligible administrative, operating, and capital 
expenses. The Contractor hereby agrees that it will provide the percentages of the 
actual net cost of the Project, as indicated below, and any amounts in excess of the 
Department’s maximum (Federal plus State shares).  The net cost is the price paid 
minus any refunds, rebates, or other items of value received by the Contractor which 
have the effect of reducing the actual cost. 

 
Operating  
WBS 

Operating 
Total  

Operating  
Federal (100%) 

Operating 
State (0%) 

Operating 
Local (0%) 

49233.44.1.2 $529,053 $529,053 $0 $0 
Agreement # 
2000040366 

    

Project  
Total 

Project  
Total 

Project  
Total Federal  

Project  
Total State 

Project  
Total Local  

 $529,053 $529,053 $0 $0 

 



 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, this Supplemental Agreement has been executed by the Department, 

an agency of the State of North Carolina, and MOORE COUNTY, the Contractor, by and through 

a duly authorized representative, and is effective the date and year first above written.   By 

reference, this Supplemental Agreement incorporates and extends all of the provisions of the 

attached “Agreement” dated JULY 1, 2020.   

 
MOORE COUNTY 

 

BY:  

TITLE: CHAIRMAN 

 
(SEAL) 

ATTEST:  

TITLE:  

 

 NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION 

 

BY:  

TITLE: DEPUTY SECRETARY FOR MULTI-MODAL 

TRANSPORTATION 

 

 

ATTEST:  

TITLE: SECRETARY 
 
 
 



APPENDIX A

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION

PROJECT NUMBER: 20-CA-062-01
APPROVED BUDGET SUMMARY

EFFECTIVE DATE AUGUST 14, 2020

PROJECT SPONSOR: MOORE COUNTY
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: FY2020 CORONAVIRUS AID, RELIEF AID, RELIEF AND ECONOMIC SECURITY (CARES ACT)

I.  TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES
49233.44.1.2 $529,053

               PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE JANUARY 20, 2020 - JUNE 30, 2021

II.  TOTAL PROJECT FUNDING

TOTAL FEDERAL STATE LOCAL
OPERATING 49233.44.1.2 100% 100% 0% 0%

AGREEMENT # $529,053 $529,053 $0 $0

TOTAL $529,053 $529,053 $0 $0

DEPARTMENT - 4522 OPERATING- 



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION

APPROVED PROJECT BUDGET
EFFECTIVE AUGUST 14, 2020

PROJECT: 20-CA-062-01
SPONSOR: MOORE COUNTY

WBS: 49233.44.1.2

OBJECT-TITLE
APPROVED 

BUDGET
G315 EMER RELIEF – OPERATING 100% activities 350,284$        
G849 Other Contra Accounts (53,016)$         

    TOTAL OPERATING 297,268$        

   DEPARTMENT 4522 - OPERATING                                                           

Approved Operating Budget
Page 2 of 4



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION

APPROVED PROJECT BUDGET
EFFECTIVE DATE AUGUST 14, 2020

PROJECT: 20-CA-062-01
SPONSOR: MOORE COUNTY

WBS: 49233.44.1.2

OBJECT-TITLE
APPROVED 

BUDGET
+ / -  

CHANGE
G315  EMER RELIEF – OPERATING 100% activities 350,284$        231,785      
G849 Other Contra Accounts (53,016)$         

    TOTAL OPERATING 297,268$        

   DEPARTMENT 5311 - OPERATING                                                           



PROPOSED 
BUDGET

582,069$      
(53,016)$       

529,053$      



PROGRAM SUMMARY SHEET REQUIREMENTS 

1 
 

 
 

 

   Operating, Capital, Planning – CARES Act  
 

 

 
 
PRINCIPLE 

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act provides emergency 
assistance and health care response for individuals, families and businesses affected by the 
COVID-19 pandemic and provides emergency appropriations to support Executive Branch 
agency operations during the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
This guidance is for all subrecipients receiving 5311 Capital, Administrative, and Operating 
program assistance to support public transportation in rural areas with populations of less 
than 50,000).   

ELIGIBLE                                                                                                                                                    
SUBRECIPIENTS 

In order to be eligible to apply for these funds,  subrecipients must have a signed 
Resolution from the Board of County Commissioners  for each County served, designating  
the subrecipient as the 5311 recipient in its jurisdiction. Starting in FY 2018, these 
Resolutions are updated on a 5-year basis  and are part of the grant application process.  
 
North Carolina’s coordinated approach to service delivery allows a single applicant within 
each designated service area. 
 
The project number will be identified as YY-CA-XXX (YY=Year; XXX= System #).  It may 
be followed by an O (operating) or S (statewide funding only).  This designation identifies 
the program funding or use.   

ELIGIBLE SERVICE                                                                                                                                                     
and SERVICE AREA 

General public transportation activities in rural North Carolina (areas outside urbanized area 

boundaries) are the focus of this funding. The goal of the Section 5311 program is to 

enhance the overall mobility of people living in rural areas. Therefore, projects may include 
transportation to or from rural areas.  Service must be open and promoted to the general 
public. However, a rural transit provider may design its Section 5311 funded services to 
maximize use by members of the general public who are transportation disadvantaged. 
Transportation disadvantaged people include seniors, people with disabilities, and low-
income individuals. Providers receiving both 5311 and 5307 funds must have a method of 
allocating costs between the two programs.   
  

FINANCIAL 
CAPACITY                                                                                                                                              
and MANAGEMENT  
 

PTD suggests Subrecipients have sufficient funds to operate and maintain the NCDOT 
funded program for at least three months without incoming revenue from grants.  
Subrecipients must have fiscal control and accounting procedures sufficient to permit the 
tracking and reporting of grant funds.  Any funds borrowed from a parent organization or 
governmental organization must be reported to NCDOT within 15-days. 
 

AUDIT REPORTS                                                                                                                                                           
and FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS     
 

Subrecipients that expend more than $500,000 in federal funds from all sources (including 
federal funds provided through NCDOT) in a year must submit the annual single audit 

required by 09 NCAC 03M and evidence of resolution of findings related to the transit 

program to NCDOT.  The value of a bus or van purchased must be considered when 
determining whether a Subrecipient meets the threshold for a single audit. 
 

VEHICLE TITLES 
 

Subrecipients will title the equipment and NCDOT Public Transportation Division be named 
first lien holder.  When the project equipment has been replaced, NCDOT will release the 
lien.  Useful life standards are maintained in NCDOT’s Transit Asset Management (TAM) 
Tier II Sponsored Plan.  This inventory is updated on an annual basis. 
 

CARES Act: 5311 
RURAL FORMULA 

PROGRAM  
 

FEDERAL 
 



PROGRAM SUMMARY SHEET REQUIREMENTS 

2 
 

INSURANCE 
 

Subrecipients will maintain insurance as defined in the procedures.  

MAINTENANCE 
 

Subrecipients will maintain project equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and 
mechanical soundness.  An 80 percent on-time performance standard for equipment and 
wheelchair lifts has been set.  All maintenance activities are entered into Trapeze EAM 
and performance is monitored.  FTA and state funded facilities require a written 
maintenance plan and annual submission of the maintenance performed. 
 

INCIDENTAL USE  

PTD discourages incidental uses of real property unless it can generate additional 
revenues for the transit system or, at a reasonable cost, enhances system ridership.  Prior 
written approval is required for incidental uses of real property which must be compatible 
with the original purposes of the contract. Incidental uses, such as meal delivery, are 
allowed if they do not interfere with the public transit service and cover the costs of the 
uses.  Nutrition programs must cover the operating costs attributable to meal delivery.   

PROGRAM                                                                                                                                                       
REPORTING AND  

NCDOT Public Transportation Division requires quarterly and year end reports. Program 
status reports are also required with each claim submitted.  Failure to submit reports on 
time will result in a reduction in the Rural Operating Assistance Program (ROAP). 
 

OVERSIGHT 

NCDOT Public Transportation Division maintains all procedures required for oversight.  
These expectations, the State Management Plan, funding applications and Certifications 
and Assurances must be followed to maintain good standing for future funding.  Failure to 
submit reports on time will result in a reduction in the Rural Operating Assistance 
Program (ROAP). 
 

REFERENCES 

Section 5311 Circular - C 9040.1G;  
Award Management Requirements 5010.1E;  

09 NCAC 03M 

Third Party Contracting Guidance 4220.1F 
NCDOT’s Business Guide 
Federal Transit Administration  
Annual Certifications and Assurances and Agreements 
Additional Terms & Conditions in the agreement 
State Management Plan 
PTD 5311 application overview and program material 
 

UPDATES/REVISIONS 

Original Date: April 22, 2020 

Last Amended Date: 

 

 

https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/formula-grants-rural-areas-program-guidance-and-application
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/award-management-requirements-circular-50101e
http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac/title%2009%20-%20governor%20and%20lt.%20governor/chapter%2003%20-%20state%20budget%20and%20management/subchapter%203m/subchapter%203m%20rules.pdf
https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-guidance/fta-circulars/third-party-contracting-guidance
https://www.ncdot.gov/nctransit/
https://www.transit.dot.gov/


 

 

 

  STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

  DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

ROY COOPER  J. ERIC BOYETTE 
 

GOVERNOR   SECRETARY 
 

Mailing Address: 
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
INTEGRATED MOBILITY DIVISION 
1501 MAIL SERVICE CENTER 
RALEIGH, NORTH CAROLINA  27699-1550 

Telephone: 919-707-4670 
Fax: 919-733-1391 

Customer Service:  1-877-368-4968 
 

Website: ncdot.gov 

Location: 
1 SOUTH WILMINGTON STREET 

RALEIGH, NC  27601 
 

 

 
October 1, 2020 
 
Sonia Biggs 
Moore County Transit 
1048 Carriage Oaks Dr, Carthage, NC 28327 
 
Dear Sonia Biggs, 
 
In March 2020, Congress passed the CARES Act providing nearly $95 Million in funding to North 
Carolina rural transit systems. These funds are intended to offset local revenue losses and aid in 
COVID-19 response and recovery efforts.  The North Carolina Department of Transportation 
(NCDOT) is the recipient of CARES Act 5311 program funding and has established disbursement 
strategies for approximately $70 Million so far.  Over $47 Million has been set aside for 
Community Transportation (CT) systems, including over $20 Million announced in May 2020 and 
an additional $27 Million announced in August 2020.  Although it is evident that NC transit 
systems need financial support – particularly with the loss of FY 21 state transit funding resulting 
from NC House Bill 77 passed in July 2020 – thus far less than $8 Million in CARES Act 
reimbursement claims have been submitted (less than 20% of the amount available). 
 
A total of $529,053 in CARES Act funding is available for your transit system, including $297,268 
in funding from NCDOT’s first funding disbursement announced in May 2020 and $231,785 in 
funding from NCDOT’s second funding disbursement announced in August 2020 (including 
Appalachian funding for eligible systems).  As of September 28, 2020, your agency has submitted 
reimbursement claims totaling $206,476, leaving $322,577 (or 61%) unclaimed and available for 
reimbursement of eligible expenses.  To access these funds, each agency must have a funding 
agreement in place with NCDOT before beginning to request reimbursement for eligible expenses.  
As of September 28, 2020, your funding agreement with NCDOT is approved and claims may be 
submitted for reimbursement.  Note that your original agreement only covers the first CARES Act 
disbursement announced in May and must be amended to include the second disbursement 
announced in August. 
 
As a reminder, all operating expenses – including staff salary and benefits, fuel, utilities, 
equipment, and supplies – are eligible for CARES Act funding.  Once an agreement is in place, 
claims must be submitted through the Enterprise Business Services (EBS) system with supporting 
documentation.  For more information about the claims process, go to the Public Transportation 
Connect NCDOT webpage or talk with the Planner/Mobility Development Specialist (MDS) from 
the Integrated Mobility Division (IMD) assigned to your transit system. 



 
 

Mailing Address: 
NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY 
1501 MAIL SERVICE CENTER 
RALEIGH, NORTH CAROLINA  27699-1501 

Telephone: 919-707-2800 
Fax: 919-733-9150 

Customer Service:  1-877-368-4968 
 

Website: ncdot.gov 

Location: 
1 SOUTH WILMINGTON STREET 

RALEIGH, NC  27601 
 

 

 
Understandably, systems have taken a cautious budgeting approach and are preserving as much 
leverage as possible due to extreme local and state funding uncertainty.  However, in order to 
justify the need for additional funding, transit systems and NCDOT must be able to show that all 
existing funding sources – particularly CARES Act funding – are needed and being utilized.  Please 
consider these factors when developing budgeting strategies and determining how to pay for 
services.   
 
If your agency has any questions or concerns regarding the CARES Act agreement or 
reimbursement processes, we are happy to provide additional guidance and assistance.  Please 
contact me at 919-707-2601 or by email at hjhildebrandt@ncdot.gov with any questions or 
concerns. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Heather Hildebrandt 
Interim Director 
Integrated Mobility Division, NCDOT 
 
cc:   
 

Caroline Xiong, Moore County Finance Manager 
Wayne Vest, Moore County Manager 
 

 



  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  10/20/2020 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Moore County Solid Waste  
 
DATE:  10/8/2020    
 
SUBJECT:  Due Diligence Extension Contract Amendment  
 
PRESENTER: David Lambert, Solid Waste Director 
 
 
REQUEST:   
 
Approve a contract amendment to extend the due diligence period for the purchase of the Morris 
Property (adjacent to the Moore County Landfill) for an additional 60 days. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
 
The property at 456 Turning Leaf Way is home to both the Moore County Landfill and the Aberdeen 
convivence site. A contract to purchase an adjacent property (PAR ID: 00053463) was signed by 
Moore County on September 1, 2020. The agreement contained several contingencies for purchase. 
Moore County Solid Waste has requested, to a 60-day extension to gather additional information.  
The Seller has agreed  
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: Not applicable 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: This has already been pre-audited and there is no 
additional consideration for the 60 day due diligence extension.   
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to approve a contract amendment purchasing a portion of the Morris Property (PAR 
ID: 00053463) to all an additional 60 days in the due diligence period.  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Contract Attachment.  

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.I.





Meeting Date: October 20, 2020 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
 
FROM: Randy Gould, PE 
  Public Works Director 
 
DATE: October 9, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: WPCP Paving Project  
 
 
REQUEST: 
Authorize the Chair to execute the Contract Amendment No. 3 with Riley Paving Inc. in the 
amount of $22,208.52 for paving and resurfacing the roads at the Water Pollution Control Plant. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The roads at the Moore County Water Pollution Control Plant were in poor condition and needed 
to be repaired.  Riley Paving Inc was the low bidder.  This Contract Amendment No. 3 will 
complete the project construction.  The actual measured quantities installed were greater than the 
unit price bid items on the contract bid form.     
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Authorize the Chair to approve and execute Contract Amendment No. 3 with Riley Paving Inc. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
This was a budgeted capital item for fiscal year 2020. The final contract amount will be 
$386,061.25.  
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Motion to approve Contract Amendment No. 3 with Riley Paving Inc. for WPCP Paving in the 
amount of $22,208.52 and authorize the Chair to sign. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Contract Amendment No. 3 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.J.



FN 20-0106c 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 3  
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  
 
This Contract Amendment No. 3 (this “Amendment”), is made this 7th day of October, 2020, between the County of Moore 
(the “County”) and Riley Paving, Inc. (the “Contractor”). 

 
WITNESSETH 

 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously entered into an agreement on April 6, 2020, which was for a paving 
project at the Moore County Water Pollution and Control Plant (the “Original Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously amended the Original Agreement by Contract Amendment No. 1, dated 
June 24, 2020, increasing the amount not to exceed by $18,105.70, to add additional paving in Area 8A; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County and Contractor previously amended the Contract Amendment No. 1, increasing the amount not to 
exceed by $19,880.84 to add paving Areas 4B and 8B to the scope of services in Contract Amendment No. 2, dated 
September 1, 2020,; and  
 
WHEREAS, due to a final pricing adjustment, the County and Contractor now desire to amend Contract Amendment No. 2 
to increase the not to exceed by $22,208.52, from $363,852.73 to $386,061.25; and to amend the Original Agreement to 
extend the term from September 30, 2020 to November 30, 2020. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements made herein, the parties agree as 
follows: 

 
1. The first sentence of Section 2 of the Original Contract will be amended to read, “The term of this Contract is from 

April 7, 2020 through October 31, 2020. 
 

2. Number one of Contract Amendment No. 2 will be amended to read, “During the term of this Contract, the 
Contractor will receive from the County an amount not to exceed $386,061.25 as full compensation for the provision 
of services as provided herein.” 
 

3. Except as provided for by this Amendment No. 3,, the Original Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 
 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract Amendment No. 3 to be executed by 
their duly authorized officers or agents as of the date first written above. 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  RILEY PAVING, INC.  
 
    
Francis R. Quis, Jr., Chairman  Debbie Riley 
Board of Commissioners  Corporate Secretary 
 
ATTEST 
 
__________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board   
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
__________________________________ 
Finance Officer  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 36DFAF7B-F598-438D-A69D-0A91D583CEBD



  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  10/20/2020 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM:  Randy Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:  October 9, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Grace Paving Contract Award 
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould, PE 
 
REQUEST: 
Award a paving contract to Grace Paving, LLC for an annual not to exceed amount of $120,000 and 
authorize the Chairman to sign.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
Informal bids were requested from paving vendors.  Only one bid was received from Grace Paving on 
August 20, 2020.  The proposed contract is for as needed and emergency asphalt patching and repair 
services for Moore County Public Works.   

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Award contract.     
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Bid Price is $400 per ton of asphalt pavement in place.  Estimated annual cost for this contract is 
approximately $120,000.  The contract is for a five-year period. 

 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to award a paving contract to Grace Paving, LLC for an annual not-to-exceed amount of 
$120,000 and authorize the Chairman to sign the contract upon approval of the County Attorney.   

 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Contract 
 
 
 
I: Public Works/Paving/2021/Agenda Memo Grace Paving 10202020 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
III.K.



FN 20-0374 

 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 

 
 
This Contract is entered into the 5th day of October, 2020, between the County of Moore, a political 

subdivision of the State of North Carolina (the “County”), and Grace Paving, LLC (the “Contractor”). 
 

1. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED AND AGREED CHARGES 
 
The Contractor agrees to provide services and (“Services”) pursuant to the provisions and 

specifications identified in Attachment 1, which are incorporated by reference in this Contract. Pursuant 
to Section 3 of this Contract, the County agrees to pay for Services contained in Attachment 1. 

  
2. TERM OF CONTRACT 

 
The term of this Contract is from October 5, 2020 through September 25, 2025. 
 
This Contract is subject to the availability of funds to purchase the specified Services and may be 

terminated at any time during the term upon thirty (30) days’ notice if such funds become unavailable. 
 

3. PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR 
 
During the term of this Contract, the Contractor will receive from the County an amount not to exceed 

$120,000.00 per year as full compensation for the provision of services as provided herein. The County 
agrees to pay at the rates specified for Services, satisfactorily performed or provided, in accordance with 
this Contract.  Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor will submit an itemized invoice to the County by 
the end of the month during which Services are performed or provided.  Payment will be processed promptly 
upon receipt and approval of the invoice by the County. 

 
4. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 
The County and Contractor agree that the Contractor is an independent contractor and will not represent 

itself as an agent or employee of the County for any purpose in the performance of the Contractor’s duties 
under this Contract.  Accordingly, the Contractor will be responsible for payment of all federal, state and 
local taxes as well as business license fees arising out of the Contractor’s activities in accordance with this 
Contract.  For purposes of this Contract taxes will include, but not be limited to, Federal and State Income, 
Social Security and Unemployment Insurance taxes. 

 
The Contractor, as an independent contractor, will perform all services in a professional manner and in 

accordance with the standards of applicable professional organizations and licensing agencies. 
 

5. INSURANCE 
 
The Contractor will maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance for all of the Contractor’s 

employees.  The Workers’ Compensation Insurance will be in the amounts prescribed by the laws 
of the State of North Carolina. 

 
The Contractor will maintain, at its expense, the following minimum insurance coverage: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C6A407E7-20EA-4594-A69C-431B95F04AAE



 

FN 20-0374 Page 2 of 6 

 
 Bodily Injury $1,000,000.00 per occurrence 
 Property Damage $100,000.00 per occurrence 
 Bodily Injury/Property Damage $1,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence 
 

Professional liability insurance will be required whenever the Contractor is required to be certified, 
licensed, or registered by a regulatory entity or where the Contractor’s error in judgment, planning, design, 
or etc. could result in economic loss to the County.  If professional liability insurance is required, the 
coverage must provide for no less than $1,000,000.00 combined single limit per occurrence. 

 
The Contractor agrees to furnish the County proof of compliance with the insurance coverage 

requirements of this Contract upon request.  The Contractor, upon request by the County, will furnish a 
certificate of insurance from an insurance company, licensed to do business in the State of North Carolina 
and acceptable to the County, verifying the existence of the insurance coverage required by the County.  
The certificate will provide for sixty (60) days advance notice in the event of termination or cancellation of 
coverage. 

 
6. INDEMNIFICATION 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor will indemnify and hold harmless the County, its 

officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, direct, indirect, 
or consequential (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers or architects, attorneys, and 
other professionals and costs related to court action or arbitration) arising out of or resulting from the 
performance of this Contract or the actions of the Contractor, its officials, employees, or contractors under 
this Contract or under the contracts entered into by the Contractor in connection with this Contract.  This 
indemnification will survive the termination of this Contract. 

 
7. HEALTH AND SAFETY 

 
The Contractor will be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 

programs required by OSHA and all other regulatory agencies while providing Services under this Contract. 
 

8. E-VERIFY 
 
Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 143-133.3, E-verify Compliance, the County may not 

enter into a contract unless the contractor, and the contractor’s subcontractors under the contract, comply 
with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.  The Contractor represents and 
warrants that it is in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.  
Further, the Contractor warrants that any subcontractors used by the Contractor will be in compliance with 
the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. 

 
9. IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT  

 
The Contractor certifies that: (i) the Contractor is not listed on the Final Divestment List created by the 

State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 147-86.58 (the “Final Divestment List”). The Final Divestment List 
can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the address https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-
treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules.  Any contract in violation of this Act is void. 

 
 

10. DIVESTMENT FROM COMPANIES BOYCOTTING ISRAEL ACT 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C6A407E7-20EA-4594-A69C-431B95F04AAE

https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules
https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules


 

FN 20-0374 Page 3 of 6 

This Contractor certifies that the Contractor is not identified as an entity by the North Carolina Secretary 
of State that is engaged in a boycott of the State of Israel pursuant to N.C.G.S., Article 6G, Chapter 147.  
The Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at 
https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules. Any contract in 
violation of this Act is void. 

 
11. NON-DISCRIMINATION IN EMPLOYMENT 

 
The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, 

sex, race, creed, national origin, or disability. In the event the Contractor is determined by the final order 
of an appropriate agency or court to be in violation of this provision or any non-discrimination provision of 
federal, state or local law, this Contract may be suspended or terminated, in whole or in part, by the County.  
In addition, the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further contracts with the County. 

 
12. GOVERNING LAW 

 
The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the 

parties to this Contract, are governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.  All actions relating to this 
Contract in any way will be brought in the General Courts of Justice in the County of Moore and the State 
of North Carolina. 

 
13. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

 
This Contract may be terminated, without cause, by either party upon thirty (30) days written notice to 

the other party.  This termination notice period will begin upon receipt of the notice of termination.  Such 
a termination does not bar either party from pursuing a claim for damages for breach of the Contract. 

 
This Contract may be terminated, for cause, by the non-breaching party notifying the breaching party 

of a substantial failure to perform in accordance with the provisions of this Contract and if the failure is not 
corrected within ten (10) days of the receipt of the notification. Upon such termination, the parties will be 
entitled to such additional rights and remedies as permitted by law. 

 
Termination of this Contract, either with or without cause, will not form the basis of any claim for loss 

of anticipated profits by either party. 
 

14. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 
The Contractor will not assign its interest in this Contract without the written consent of the County.  

The Contractor has no authority to enter into contracts on behalf of the County. 
 

15. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 
The Contractor represents that it is in compliance with all Federal, State, and local laws, regulations or 

orders, as amended or supplemented.  The implementation of this Contract will be carried out in strict 
compliance with all Federal, State, or local laws regarding discrimination in employment. 

 
16. NOTICES 

 
All notices which may be required by this Contract or any rule of law will be effective when received 

by certified mail sent to the following addresses: 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C6A407E7-20EA-4594-A69C-431B95F04AAE

https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules


 

FN 20-0374 Page 4 of 6 

COUNTY OF MOORE: MOORE COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 
 ATTN:  RANDY GOULD, DIRECTOR 
 P.O. BOX 905 
 CARTHAGE, NC  28327    
 
CONTRACTOR: GRACE PAVING, LLC 
 ATTN:  TERRY D. PATTERSON 
 280 MONROE RD. 
 CARTHAGE, NC  28327 

 
17. AUDIT RIGHTS 

 
For all Services being provided under this Contract, the County has the right to inspect, examine, and 

make copies of any and all books, accounts, invoices, records and other writings relating to the performance 
of those Services.  Audits will take place at times and locations mutually agreed upon by both parties.  The 
Contractor must make the materials to be audited available within one (1) week of the request for them. 

 
18. COUNTY NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR EXPENSES 

 
The County will not be liable to the Contractor for any expenses paid or incurred by the Contractor 

unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 

19. EQUIPMENT 
 
The Contractor will supply, at its sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials, and supplies required to 

provide contracted Services unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 

20. PRIORITY OF DOCUMENTS 
 
In the event of any inconsistency between the Contract and any attachment to the Contract, the Contract 

will have priority. 
 

21. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Contract shall be determined to be unenforceable by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, such determination will not affect any other provision of this Contract. 
 

22. NON-WAIVER 
 
The failure by one party to require performance of any provision of this Contract will not affect that 

party's right to require performance at any time thereafter or to enforce other remedies available to it by law 
or under this Contract.  In addition, no waiver of any breach or default of this Contract will constitute a 
waiver of any subsequent breach or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 

 
23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 
This Contract and Attachment 1 constitute the entire understanding between the parties and supersedes 

all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, relating to the subject matter hereof. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C6A407E7-20EA-4594-A69C-431B95F04AAE



 

FN 20-0374 Page 5 of 6 

24. AMENDMENT 
 
This Contract may only be amended by the written mutual agreement of the parties. 
 

25. DRAFTED BY BOTH PARTIES 
 
This Contract is deemed to have been drafted by both parties and no interpretation will be made to the 

contrary. 
 

26. HEADINGS 
 
Subject headings are for convenience only and will not affect the construction or interpretation of any 

provision. 
 
 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract to be executed by 

their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Contract is effective as of the date first written above. 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  GRACE PAVING, LLC 
 
 
______________________________ \s2 ___________________________   
Francis R. Quis, Jr., Chairman  Terry D. Patterson 
Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
______________________________ 
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board   
 
   
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 
 

 \s3\  
Finance Officer  

DocuSign Envelope ID: C6A407E7-20EA-4594-A69C-431B95F04AAE



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 20-0374 Page 6 of 6 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 
The Contractor will provide all necessary supervision, labor, materials, and equipment required for 
routine and emergency Asphalt patching and repair services.   
 
Utility cut repair and patching work shall consist of placement of no less than two (2”) inches compacted 
NCDOT Type SF-9.5B bituminous concrete surface course to provide final repair of utility cuts 
previously made on asphalt roadways.  Price per ton shall include all work, materials, traffic control, and 
equipment necessary to repair utility cuts properly and safely.  Price shall also include minor cleanup 
work for each trench to be repaired.  Cleanup work shall include re-cutting of edges where necessary to 
provide a clean vertical face for the patch, removal of all loose stone/asphalt, removal of at least two (2”) 
inches of trench backfill stone to allow the finished asphalt patch to be flush with the existing pavement, 
and tracking of all edges with AC tack to provide a proper bond. In the event the Contract encounters a 
trench that has been poorly backfilled or has settled and needs compaction, he shall immediately notify 
the Distribution Supervisor of Moore County Public Works or its agent for correction.  Once the repair 
has been made, asphalt surface course shall be warrantied by the Contractor for a period of one (1) year. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: C6A407E7-20EA-4594-A69C-431B95F04AAE



  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date: October 20, 2020 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:  September 28, 2020   
 
SUBJECT: Quasi-Judicial Hearing for a Conditional Use Permit-Major Conventional 

Subdivision-Preliminary Plat Leatherwood – ParID 00991748  
 
PRESENTER: Debra Ensminger 
 
 
REQUEST: 
David Upchurch and Lee Humphrey is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a Major Conventional 
Subdivision Preliminary Plat approval (Leatherwood) for 5 lots on 12.47 acre parcel, located on 
Vass-Carthage Road, Carthage, owned by Marylin Garner & Others, as identified in Deed Book 1509 
Page 45; Deed Book 2008E Page 280; Deed Book 2005E Page 414. 
 
Public notification consisted of publishing a legal notice in the local newspaper for two consecutive 
weeks, notification by mail to adjacent property owners, and placing public hearing signs on the 
property. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The property currently has a vacant single-family residential building on the property, however, will 
be removed.  Adjacent land uses include single family residential dwellings and undeveloped 
property. 
 
DENSITY 
The current zoning of the property would allow for a maximum of 14 dwelling units on the property. 
The developer is proposing 5 lots within the development which is less than the maximum allowed.  
 
CLEARING & GRADING LIMITS 
A maximum disturbance area of no more than 75% of a lot may be cleared of natural vegetation or 
disturbed.  This would allow 25% of each lot to be preserved and must be delineated in each lot. 
 
 
OPEN SPACE  
A Conventional Major Subdivision requires at least 5% of the tract to be subdivided and preserved as 
public or private recreation and/or open space including the preservation of natural or cultural 
resources and/or to serve the leisure needs of the residents of the subdivision.    
 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.A.



Leatherwood– Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report 

WATER AND SEPTIC: 
• Water – The developer proposes to tap onto Moore County Water. The Public Works 

Department has reviewed and given preliminary approval of the project. There is adequate 
water supply and storage to serve the proposed Leatherwood development.   

• Fire Flow – The Fire Marshal has reviewed the flow test and water model results and based on 
the presented plans of the project there is adequate water supply to meet the required gallons 
per minute (GPM) fire flow.  

• Septic – The development will utilize individual private septic systems. The applicant shall 
submit a lot‐by‐lot evaluation for septic system capacity for approval before final plat 
approval. 

 
OVERLAY DISTRICTS: 

• Watershed – The property is within the WS-III-BW Little River (Vass) Watershed which 
limits single family residential development to two (2) dwelling units per acre or 20,000 
square foot lot excluding the street right-of-way. The proposed project meets the watershed 
regulations.  

• High Quality Water District – The property is located within a High-Quality Water District. 
The applicant will receive low density stormwater plan approval from the North Carolina 
Department of Environmental Quality (NCDEQ) before any construction begins.  

• Wetlands – There are wetlands located on the property, though they are located outside of the 
project area.  

• Floodplain – The 100-year floodplain is not present on site. 
• Voluntary Agricultural District – The property is located within a half mile of a VAD.  
• Highway Corridor Overlay District – The property is not located within an HCOD.  

 
TRANSPORTATION: 
North Department of Transportation has approved the developer to utilize shared driveways for this 
project. 
 
STORMWATER 
The applicant’s engineer confirms the stormwater management plans will be designed to protect to 
the ten (or) twenty-five-year storm level and designed & constructed to North Carolina Department 
of Transportation standards. 
 
ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS 
In approving an application, the Board of Commissioners may attach fair and reasonable conditions 
to the approval which assure that the required findings are upheld. Such conditions may include, but 
are not limited to, right-of-way or easement dedication, recreation or open space, buffer provisions, 
limitation in scale, intensity, and other reasonable restrictions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Leatherwood– Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report 

REQUIRED FINDINGS 
In recommending the Conditional Use Permit the following findings must be met: 
 

1. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. 
2. The use meets all required conditions and specifications.  
3. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining property unless the use is a  public 

necessity; 
4. The use will be in harmony with the surrounding area and compatible with the surrounding 

neighborhood; and 
5. The use will be in general conformity with the approved Moore County Land Use Plan. 

Action 1.8.5: Support and promote infill development that will optimize the use of existing 
infrastructure, Recommendation 3.1: Maximize accessibility among living, working, and 
shopping areas, Action 3.1.1: Adopt policies that encourage development of mixed land uses, 
as appropriate, to provide easy access, reduce travel time, and improve convenience among 
uses surrounding the County’s established towns and villages.  

 
ACTION BY THE SUBDIVISION REVIEW BOARD 
The Subdivision Review Board recommended approval of the proposed preliminary plat on 
September 22, 2020as submitted with the following conditions prior to going before the Moore 
County Board of Commissioners: NCDOT approval and Subdivision Administrator approval. The 
preliminary plat has met these requirements.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
No financial impact to the County’s FY 2020-2021 budget.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Moore County Board of Commissioners to approve or deny the proposed 
preliminary plat as submitted with the following conditions: 
 
The developer shall complete the following items before construction begins or as otherwise 
indicated: 
a. Subdivision Decision Sign – The applicant shall post a “Subdivision Decision” sign on the site 

and provide evidence to the Administrator within 10 days of preliminary plat approval, including 
contact information of the Administrator, for a minimum of 10 days to notify the neighbors of the 
subdivision decision, or the plat shall be null and void.  

b. Inspections Schedule – The applicant, prior to commencing any work within the subdivision, 
shall plan with the Administrator to provide for adequate inspections. 

c. Utility Construction Plans – Shall be approved by the Moore County Public Utilities, Fire 
Marshal, and other applicable agencies. 

d. NCDOT Driveway Permit Approval. 
e. Sediment Erosion Control Plan Approval by NCDEQ prior to any site disturbing activity.  
f.    Mail Kiosk -Installation approval by Building Inspections. 
g.  Soil Evaluations Report – For each lot submitted by a licensed Soil Scientist as approved by the 

Moore County Environmental Health Department required before final plat approval. 
h.  Street Tree Details – Approved by the Planning Department (installation and inspection required 

before a Certificate of Occupancy is issued for each lot). 
i.  HOA – Bylaws and restrictive covenants approved before final plat approval to include that open 

space, cluster mailboxes, streets, and common areas will be maintained by the HOA.  



Leatherwood– Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report 

j. All other provisions as indicated in Chapter 18 of the Unified Development Ordinance, and any 
other applicable local and state requirement, before construction begins and/or final plat approval. 

 
 
Motion: Make a motion to approve / deny the Conditional Use Permit for a Major Conventional 
Subdivision Preliminary Plat for 5 lots on a 12.47 acre parcel, located on Vass-Carthage Road, 
Carthage, owned by Marilyn Garner, as identified in Deed Book 1509 Page 45 with provided staff 
recommended conditions.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Vicinity Map  
• Land Use Map 
• Zoning Map 
• Preliminary Plat  
• Conditional Use Permit Application 
• Deed Book 1509 Page 45 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



THE TOWN OF 
VASS

THE TOWN OF 
CAMERON

THE VILLAGE OF 
WHISPERING PINES

THE TOWN OF 
SOUTHERN PINES

THE TOWN OF 
CARTHAGE

THE TOWN OF 
TAYLORTOWN

THE VILLAGE OF 
PINEHURST

Vicinity Map

Urban Transition COD (400' from ROW line on each side)

LEE
COUNTY

HARNETT
COUNTY

HOKE
COUNTY

¯



MooreCounty

RABBIT

VASS-CARTHAGE

R
A

Y
M

A
R

F
A

N
C

Y
 A

C
R

E
S

MAJOR

FOUR CORNERS

Legend
B-1

B-1-CUD

B-2

GC-SL

GC-WL

I

P-C

PUD/CUD

PUD-H

RA

RA-2

RA-2-CUD

RA-5

RA-20

RA-40

R-MH

RA-CUD

RA-USB

RE

VB

VB-CUD

NC_counties tax_parcels

Land Use Map

Undeveloped

Manufactured Homes

¯

Single Family 
Dwelling

Undeveloped

Undeveloped

Farm

Single Family 
Dwelling



RA-40

WHISPERING PINES

VASS-CARTHAGE

RABBIT

M
A

J
O

R

C
R

A
B

T
R

E
E

R
A

Y
M

A
R

H
E

N
N

IN
G

S

F
A

N
C

Y
 A

C
R

E
S

F
O

U
R

 C
O

R
N

E
R

S

SANDS

Zoning Map

Shaded area considered for
Conditional Use Permit  for 

Major Conventional Subdivision















Page 1 of 1 

 Agenda Item:  _____________________ 
 Meeting Date: ____10/20/2020________ 

 
MEMORANDUM TO: MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: Rachel Patterson, GIS 
 
DATE:  October 20, 2020 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing – Amendment to the  
 Moore County Road Name and Addressing Ordinance 
 
PRESENTER: Rachel Patterson 
 
REQUEST: 
Request is hereby made for the Board of Commissioners to amend the Moore County Road Naming and 
Addressing Ordinance to add one (1) road to the ordinance.   
 
BACKGROUND:  
On July 10, 1989, the Moore County Board of Commissioners enacted the Moore County Road Name 
and Addressing Ordinance, establishing the names of roads, a procedure for the future naming or 
renaming of roads and the numbering of all houses, mobile homes, commercial and industrial buildings.  
In adopting this Ordinance, the Board recognized the need for the naming of roads outside of municipal 
limits in the County of Moore and the numbering of residential, commercial and industrial structures, and 
accessory buildings thereto, as being essential for the operation of the enhanced 911 dispatch system in 
the County of Moore. 
 
Section 3 of this Ordinance states “No new roads outside of municipal limits in the County of Moore, 
whether a part of the State Secondary Road System or Private, shall be named without approval of the 
Board of Commissioners.”  The road listed here are for initial naming and are privately maintained; 
NORTHERN DUNES DR (P4245). 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Upon adoption of this amendment, a formal letter of notification of the approved road names will be 
forwarded to individuals who own property along each of these roads. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Not Applicable. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Staff respectfully requests that the Board of Commissioners make a motion to add one (1) road to the 
Moore County Road Name and Addressing Ordinance as proposed. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Road Name and Addressing Ordinance  
Color Maps 
Legal Notice 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII.A.



Page 1 of 1 

AMENDMENT TO 
 

THE MOORE COUNTY ROAD NAME AND ADDRESSING ORDINANCE 
 

ADOPTED JULY 10, 1989 
AND AS SUBSEQUENTLY AMENDED 

 
RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Moore that Section III ROAD NAMING 
OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED ORDINANCE BE AMENDED TO ADD, RENAME, OR REMOVE 
THE FOLLOWING ROADS AS INDICATED: 
 
ADD:  
 
NORTHERN DUNES DR (P4245)  ......Located off US 1 Hwy approximately 500 feet north of 

the private road Southern Dunes Dr.  

 

AND, FURTHER, that the effective date of this amendment to the above described Ordinance shall be 
upon adoption. 
 
Adopted this 20th day of October 2020. 
 
 
 ________________________________ 
 Francis R Quis, Jr., Chairman 
 Moore County Board of Commissioners 
________________________________ 
Laura Williams, Clerk to the Board 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
MOORE COUNTY ORDINANCE UPDATE  

– October 2020 – 
 

NEW/CHANGED/REMOVED ROAD NAME ........................................ MAP NUMBER 

NORTHERN DUNES DR ................................................................................ 1 



US 1 HWY

YOUNGS RD

KIMBALL CT

SOUTHERN DUNES DR

GARNER PL

US
 1 

HW
Y

NORTHERN DUNES DR

/
Source : \\g isd b\g is\Proje cts\DEPAR TMENTS\ADDR ESSING\Stre e ts_ ord ina nce \R oa d Na m e _ Pre Ag e nd a \2020_ 10_ Oct_ 20\Ma ps\Upd a te R oa d s_ Le tte rSize .m xd

Map Prepa re d  By Moore  County GIS Depa rtm e nt
Da te :  9/15/2020
Moore County GIS Discla im e r
All the  inform a tion conta ine d  on this m e d ia  is pre pa re d  for the  inve ntory of re a l prope rty found  within Moore  County.  All d a ta  is com pile d
from  re cord e d  d e e d s, pla ts, a nd  othe r public re cord s a nd  d a ta .  Use rs of this d a ta  a re  he re by notifie d  tha t the  a fore m e ntione d  public prim a ry 
inform a tion source s should  be consulte d  for ve rifica tion of the  inform a tion.  All inform a tion conta ine d  he re in wa s cre a te d  for the  County’s inte rna l use .  
MOOR E COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES MAKE NO WAR R ANTY AS TO THE COR R ECTNESS OR  ACCUR ACY OF THE 
INFOR MATION SET FOR TH ON THIS MEDIA WHETHER  EXPR ESS OR  IMPLIED, IN FACT OR  IN LAW, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION 
THE IMPLIED WAR R ANTIES OF MER CHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR  A PAR TICULAR  USE.  Any re sa le  of this d a ta  is strictly prohibite d  
in a ccord a nce  with North Ca rolina  Ge ne ra l Sta tute s 132-10.  Grid  is ba se d  on North Ca rolina  Sta te  Pla ne  Coord ina te  Syste m  NAD83 (fe e t).

Moore County Ordinance Update - Map 1
400 Fe e t

Legend
Existing  R oa d s
Pa rce ls
Citie s
County Line



LEGAL NOTICE 

 
Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing will be held before the Moore County Board 
of Commissioners at 5:30 PM on Tuesday, October 20, 2020, in the Commissioners’ 
Meeting Room located on the 2nd floor of the Historic Courthouse in Carthage, North 
Carolina.  The purpose of the hearing is to consider the following: 
 

An amendment to the Moore County Road Name and Addressing 
Ordinance to add one road to the Ordinance, which is Northern Dunes Dr. 
 

 
Information pertaining to this amendment is available for review at the Moore County 
GIS Department, located at 302 S. McNeill St, Carthage, NC 28327, during normal 
business hours. 
 
Interested persons are invited to attend.  Accommodations for individuals with disabilities 
or impairments will be made upon request to the extent that reasonable notice is given. 
 
Laura Williams, 
Clerk to the Board 



 General Use Rezoning Request RA-CUD to RA-40 Staff Report                                            

Agenda Item: ___ 
Meeting Date: October 20, 2020 

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director 
 
DATE:  July 15, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: General Use Rezoning Request RA-CUD (Farm Use) (Rural 

Agricultural – Conditional Use District) to Residential and 
Agricultural – 40 District (RA-40) 

PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
 
REQUEST 
Matthew & Jamie Encinosa, Alex & Lara Hardy and Michael & Judy Rowland are requesting a 
General Use Rezoning Request of 42.94 acres (Tracts 1, 3 & 4) located on NC Hwy 22 and 
Blues Siding Road from Rural Agricultural – CUD (Farm Use) to Rural and Agricultural -40 
(RA-40). The properties are further described as Par ID’s #00036767 & #95000186 owned by 
Michael & Judy Rowland (Tract 1) per Deed Book 1118, Page 415 & Deed Book 1072, Page 
111, Matthew & Jamie Encinosa (Tract 3) per Deed Book 5337, Page 91 and Alex & Lara Hardy 
(Tract 4) per Deed Book 5301, Page 400.   
 
Public notification consisted of publishing a legal notice in the local newspaper for two 
consecutive weeks, notification by mail to adjacent property owners, and placing public hearing 
signs on the property. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2002 the property owners Michael & Judy Rowland requested the property to be rezoned RA-
CUD “Farm Use” to allow their family members to build several homes and to farm. 
 
In January 2020, said property was subdivided. Tracts 3 & 4 were sold to non-family members.  
The owners of the properties including the Rowland’s are requesting the properties return to their 
original zoning classification Residential and Agricultural – 40 (RA-40). 
 
ZONING DISTRICT COMPATIBILITY 
Tract 1, (27.03 acres), owned by Michael & Judy Rowland is currently developed with a single-
family dwelling, pool, garage, and dwelling with stables.  Tract 3, (9.69 acres), owned by Michael 
& Jamie Encinosa is currently undeveloped and tract 4, (6.22 acres), owned by Alex & Lara Hardy 
is currently undeveloped.   
 
The area surrounding the General Use Rezoning Request includes Residential and Agricultural – 
40 (RA-40) and Rural Agricultural (RA). 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII.B.



 General Use Rezoning Request RA-CUD to RA-40 Staff Report                                            

CONSISTENCY WITH THE 2013 MOORE COUNTY LAND USE PLAN 
The future land map identifies the property as Rural Agricultural Land Use Classification.   
The primary use of the land is to support rural residential life associated with agricultural uses and 
other rural activities.  Major subdivisions of land are strongly discouraged; however, family 
subdivisions and subdivisions of four or less lots would be considered. 
 
The request is also consistent  with several goals as included in the attached Land Use Plan 
Consistency Statement, including Goal 1: Preserve and Protect the Ambiance and Heritage of the 
County of Moore (inclusive of areas around municipalities), Action 1.8.5: Support and promote 
infill development that will optimize the use of existing infrastructure. 
 
MOORE COUNTY FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

* 
  

 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Hold the public hearing and approve / deny the rezoning request.  
 
ACTION BY THE PLANNING BOARD 
The Planning Board met on August 6, 2020 and unanimously recommended approval. 
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
No financial impact to the County’s FY 2020-2021 budget. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Moore County Board of Commissioners make two separate motions: 
 
Motion #1: Make a motion to Approve or Deny the attached Moore County Board of 
Commissioners Land Use Plan Consistency Statement and authorize its Chairman to execute the 
document as required by North Carolina General Statute 153A-341. 
 
Motion #2: Make a motion to  Approve or Deny the General Use Rezoning Request of 42.94 
acres (Tracts 1, 3 & 4) located on NC Hwy 22 and Blues Siding Road from Rural Agricultural – 
CUD (Farm Use) to Rural and Agricultural -40 (RA-40). The properties are further described as 
Par ID’s #00036767 & #95000186 owned by Michael & Judy Rowland (Tract 1) per Deed Book 



 General Use Rezoning Request RA-CUD to RA-40 Staff Report                                            

1118, Page 415 & Deed Book 1072, Page 111, Matthew & Jamie Encinosa (Tract 3) per Deed 
Book 5337, Page 91 and Alex & Lara Hardy (Tract 4) per Deed Book 5301, Page 400. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Pictures of Property and Adjacent Properties 
• Vicinity Map  
• Land Use Map 
• Rezoning Map – County Zoning & Municipal Comparison  
• Submitted Rezoning Application 
• Submitted Site Specific Development Plan 
• Submitted Proposed Uses for Property  
• Board of Commissioners Consistency Statement – Approval 
• Board of Commissioners Consistency Statement – Denial 
• Michael & Judy Rowland (Tract 1) per Deed Book 1118, Page 415, & 

Deed Book 1072, Page 111  
• Matthew & Jamie Encinosa (Tract 3) Deed Book 5337, Page 91  
• Alex & Lara Hardy (Tract 4) per Deed Book 5301, Page 400.   

 
 
View of North Bound Blue Siding Road 
 

 
View of South Bound Blue Siding Rd. 
 



 General Use Rezoning Request RA-CUD to RA-40 Staff Report                                            

 
 
 
View from North Bound Hwy 22 
 

 
View of Subject Parcel on Blue Siding Rd. 
 



 General Use Rezoning Request RA-CUD to RA-40 Staff Report                                            

 
 
View of Subject Parcel on NC Hwy 22 
 

 
 
View of Subject Parcel #00039700 
 



 General Use Rezoning Request RA-CUD to RA-40 Staff Report                                            

 
 
 



LEE COUNTY

Whispering Pines
ETJ

Vass
ETJ

THE VILLAGE OF
WHISPERING PINES

THE TOWN OF
SOUTHERN PINES

THE TOWN OF
VASS

THE TOWN OF
CARTHAGE

THE TOWN OF
CAMERON

CAMERON
ETJ

Carthage
ETJ

THE VILLAGE OF 
PINEHURST

Vicinity Map

Urban Transition COD (400' from ROW line on each side)

¯



Land Use Map

Steel Building
Single Family 

DwellingUndeveloped

¯

Single Family 
Dwelling

Single Family 
Dwelling

Single Family 
Dwellings

Single Family 
Dwelling

Undeveloped

Single Family 
Dwelling

Undeveloped



Town of Carthage

Town of Carthage

RA-40

RA-40

RA-40

RA-CUD

RA

RA-40

N
C

 2
2

U
S

 1
5
-5

0
1

B
L

U
E

S
 S

ID
IN

G

G
L
E
N

D
A

LE

BRINKLEY

Zoning Map

Shaded areas requested
to be rezoned to RA-40











Moore County Board of Commissioners 

Land Use Plan Consistency Statement 

General Use Rezoning Request 

RA-CUD (Farm Use) to Rural and Agricultural – 40 (RA-40) 

 

The Moore County Board of Commissioners finds that:  

 

1. The rezoning request is consistent with the following goals as listed in the 2013 

Moore County Land Use Plan: 

 

Goal 1: Preserve and Protect the Ambiance and Heritage of the County of 

Moore (inclusive of areas around the municipalities) 

 

• Action 1.8.5: Support and promote infill development that will optimize 

the use of existing infrastructure. 

 

Goal 4: Provide Information and Seek Citizen Participation 

• Recommendation 4:1: Promote efforts to involve and inform citizens 

throughout various planning and permitting processes. 

• Action 4.1.1: Continue to support and implement easy to understand 

guidelines to incorporate throughout governmental departments. 

• Action 4.1.2:  Utilize various forms of media to help communicate and 

encourage participation in planning efforts. 

 

Therefore, the Moore County Board of Commissioners recommends APPROVAL 

of the General Use Rezoning of approximately 42.94 acres from RA-CUD (Farm 

Use) to Residential and Agricultural – 40 (RA-40) 

 

 

 

__________________________________________          _________________________ 

Frank Quis, Chair                                Date 

Moore County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Moore County Board of Commissioners 

Land Use Plan Consistency Statement 

General Use Rezoning Request 

RA-CUD (Farm Use) to Rural and Agricultural – 40 (RA-40) 

 

The Moore County Board of Commissioners finds that:  

 

1. The rezoning request is consistent with the following goals as listed in the 2013 

Moore County Land Use Plan: 

 

Goal 1: Preserve and Protect the Ambiance and Heritage of the County of 

Moore (inclusive of areas around the municipalities) 

 

• Action 1.8.5: Support and promote infill development that will optimize 

the use of existing infrastructure. 

 

Goal 4: Provide Information and Seek Citizen Participation 

• Recommendation 4:1: Promote efforts to involve and inform citizens 

throughout various planning and permitting processes. 

• Action 4.1.1: Continue to support and implement easy to understand 

guidelines to incorporate throughout governmental departments. 

• Action 4.1.2:  Utilize various forms of media to help communicate and 

encourage participation in planning efforts. 

 

Therefore, the Moore County Board of Commissioners recommends DENIAL of 

the General Use Rezoning of approximately 42.94 acres from RA-CUD (Farm Use) 

to Residential and Agricultural – 40 (RA-40) 

 

 

 

__________________________________________          _________________________ 

Frank Quis, Chair                                Date 

Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 

























 
 
 Highway Corridor Overlay District – Staff Report 
 
 

  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date: October 20, 2020 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director   
 
DATE:  July 30, 2020   
 
SUBJECT:  Public Hearing - Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendments- 

Highway Corridor Overlay District Development Standards  
 
PRESENTER: Debra Ensminger 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Request the Moore County Board of Commissioners to consider the following amendments to the 
Moore County Unified Development Ordinance regarding Highway Corridor Overlay District 
Development Standards. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
During the Spring of 2019 presentations were presented to the municipalities requesting feedback 
regarding the current Highway Corridor Overlay District Development Standards.  The proposed 
amendments are a collaborative effort between Moore County, the Village of Pinehurst, Town of 
Southern Pines and Foxfire Village.  The other municipalities did not provide any recommendations. 
 
Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendments – Highway Corridor Overlay District 
 
Bold Text – additions to the ordinance 
Strikethrough Text - deletions from the ordinance 
 
1. AMEND Chapter 3 (Intent of Zoning Districts), Section 3.16 (Highway Corridor Overlay 

District), as follows: 

3.16 Highway Corridor Overlay District 

In order to promote the general health, safety, and welfare of the community, to protect the rural 

character and natural environment of the area, and to provide attractive highway corridors and 

gateways to our communities, the Highway Corridor Overlay District is created. The Highway 

Corridor Overlay District (HCOD) is intended to maintain or enhances the natural scenic beauty of 

designated corridors viewed by travelers. The Highway Corridor Overlay District is established as 

a district which overlays the zoning in every district along either side of US 1 Highway (from 

Southern Pines ETJ north to Cameron’s ETJ and south from Pinebluff’s ETJ to the Richmond 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII.C.



 Highway Corridor Overlay District – Staff Report 
 
 

County line), US 15/501 Highway between Pinehurst and Carthage, from Aberdeen to the Hoke 

County line, and from Carthage to the Lee County line, NC 22 Highway from US 15-501 

intersection at Carthage to Southern Pines, NC 24-27, NC 690, and NC 211 Highway from 

Pinehurst to Montgomery County line (including the Seven Lakes Village Business District). The 

HCOD does not include any municipal zoning jurisdictions. Two Three HCOD districts have been 

established. Wherever standards of the underlying zoning district differ from the watershed overlay 

standards, the more restrictive provisions shall apply. 

A. Rural Highway. The Rural HCOD overlays the zoning along portions of the 

following roadways as depicted on the official zoning map, not including any 

municipal zoning jurisdiction: US 1 Highway, NC 690, and NC 24-27. US Highway 

15/501, NC 22 Highway, and NC Highway 211. Commercial, Industrial and Office 

Professional elements along these corridors shall be intermittent and clustering of 

these elements is encouraged at appropriate centralized locations. This district’s goal 

is to provide compatible transitions between differing land uses, enhance the 

natural environment, and retain the existing rural character of Moore County.  

B. Urban Transition. The Urban HCOD overlays the zoning along portions of the 

following roadways as depicted on the official zoning map, not including any 

municipal zoning jurisdiction: US 1 Highway, US Highway 15/501, NC 22 Highway, 

and NC 211 Highway. There shall be a balance of residential, recreational, 

commercial, industrial and office professional uses. These highway sections are best 

suited for providing a balance of naturalized and manmade conditions. This 

district’s goal is to improve property, support the natural conditions, and keep in 

visual character and appearance of the nearby Towns. The Sandhills and Longleaf 

Pine are unique within North Carolina and these elements are of economic value 

to the Towns and make it a desirable place for both residents and visitors.    

C. Urban/Village. The Urban/Village HCOD overlays the zoning along a portion of the 

following roadway as depicted on the official zoning map: N.C. 211 Highway. This 

district allows for denser land use patterns for commercial and residential 

development, however, the visual aspects of the development along these corridors 

shall be defined by an emphasis on landscape elements. 

2. AMEND Chapter 7 (General Development Standards), Section 7.8 (Highway Corridor Overlay 
District), as follows: 

7.8    Highway Corridor Overlay District 

A. Applicability. New Development. All new building construction and major subdivisions 

within the Highway Corridor Overlay District (400 feet from the ROW lines) shall comply 

with the regulations of this section. If there are more restrictive standards elsewhere in the 

UDO those standards shall be followed.   



 Highway Corridor Overlay District – Staff Report 
 
 

B. Existing Development. Expansions of 500 square feet or more and any change of use as 

defined by the NC Building Code shall comply with the regulations of this chapter. In these 

cases, the Administrator shall determine the level of compliance technically feasible, 

excluding the removal of asphalt. If the total renovations, maintenance, and/or repairs to an 

existing building within a 5 year period enlarge the footprint 50% or more or collectively 

cost more than 50% of the tax value as recorded in the county tax record at the date of 

application, the entire lot shall comply with the requirements of this Section. Such 

developments shall fully be required to meet the minimum requirements set forth 

technically feasible, excluding the removal of asphalt.  

C. Exemptions. Single family (not including manufactured homes), duplexes (not including 

multi-family) and their accessory buildings and uses, any building expansions less than 500 

square feet, and utility structures. Developed lots in the Village Business Zoning District are 

exempt from building and parking setbacks and landscaping standards.  

D. Extension. Refer to Section 7.11(F). 

E. Maintenance and Changes. Maintenance and changes to exterior existing building 

elements and facades for development less than 50% of tax value will apply only to the 

specific change. Maintenance, changes to exterior existing buildings elements and facades 

of 50% or more of the building shall comply with the standards adopted in this Chapter. 

The passage of time shall not remove this requirement for review and approval if changes 

in design, including color, are proposed for any building, built prior to or after the 

adoption of this Chapter, within the County which is subject to these provisions.  

F. Minimum Lot, Buildings, and Screening Standards. 

 
Urban 

Village 

Urban 

Transition 

Rural 

Highway 

District Boundaries from ROW lines 300 feet 400 feet 500 feet 

Front Building Setback from highway 50 feet 75 feet 75 feet 

Front Parking Setback from highway 30 feet 50 feet 50 feet 

Building Setback from Residential Districts 25 feet 50 feet 50 feet 

Building Setback from Non-Residential Districts 5 feet 25 feet 25 feet 

Maximum Built Upon Surface  70% 70% 70% 

Maximum Building Height 35 feet 35 feet 35 feet 

Required Buffer Plantings from ROW line Type 3 Screening (Section 7.11)  

 

G. Screening Standards. The Screening standards of this Section shall apply to any 

expansion of a parking lot by 10 or more parking spaces. If there is a change of use in a 

principal building the lot shall comply with screening standards. Sites that have ceased 

operation for more than 180 days shall comply with the current screening standards.  

H. Prohibited Uses.  



 Highway Corridor Overlay District – Staff Report 
 
 

1. Urban Transition. Accessory Manufactured Home, Manufactured Home, Personal 

Workshop / Storage Building, Manufactured or Modular Home Sales, all uses 

listed under  “Adult Uses” including Adult Gaming Establishments, Bars/Tavern, 

Brewery/Winery, Dance Club, Night Club, Billiard, Distillery, Massage & 

Bodywork Therapy Practice (Unlicensed), Pawn Shop, Sexually Oriented Business, 

Tattoo Parlor, and Body Piercing, and “Waste Related Services” including Debris 

Management Facility, Hazardous Waste/Toxic Chemicals Disposal or Processing, 

Landfill, Mining/Quarry Operation, and Salvage Yard,  Cemetery or 

Mausoleum/Commercial, Family Cemetery, High Impact Outdoor Recreation, 

Indoor Shooting Range, Outdoor Shooting Range, Zoo/Petting Zoo, Contractors 

Storage Yard and Office, Wireless Communication Facility, Mini-Warehouse (Self-

Service), Warehousing and/or Distribution Center, and Debris Management 

Facility. 

2. Rural Highway. Accessory Manufactured Home, Manufactured Home, Sexually 

Oriented Business, Indoor Shooting Range, Outdoor Shooting Range, and all uses 

listed under “Waste Related Services” including Debris Management Facility, 

Hazardous Waste/Toxic Chemicals Disposal or Processing, Landfill, 

Mining/Quarry Operation, and Salvage Yard. 

I. Conditional Zoning Uses.  

1. Urban Transition. Group Care Facility, All uses listed under “Vehicle Services” 

including Boat & RV Storage, Car Wash or Auto Detailing, Commercial Truck 

Wash, Parking Lot as Principal Use of Lot, Taxi Service, Vehicle, Auto Parts, Tires, 

Farm Equipment, Boat, RV – Sales Rental or Service, Vehicle Service Station (Gas 

Station), and Vehicle Wrecker Service, and Commercial buildings in excess of 

10,000 square feet. 

2. Rural Highway. Group Care Facility, All uses listed under “Vehicle Services” 

including Boat & RV Storage, Car Wash or Auto Detailing, Commercial Truck 

Wash, Parking Lot as Principal Use of Lot, Taxi Service, Vehicle, Auto Parts, Tires, 

Farm Equipment, Boat, RV – Sales Rental or Service, Vehicle Service Station (Gas 

Station), and Vehicle Wrecker Service, and “Adult Uses” including Adult Gaming 

Establishments, Bars/Tavern, Brewery/Winery, Dance Club, Night Club, Billiard, 

Distillery, Massage & Bodywork Therapy Practice (Unlicensed), Pawn Shop, 

Tattoo Parlor, and Body Piercing, Low Impact and High Impact Outdoor 

Recreation, Mini-warehouse (Self-Service), Manufactured or modular home sales, 

Indoor Shooting Range, and Commercial buildings in excess of 50,000 square feet. 

J. Storm Water Management. A Stormwater Management Plan shall be required as part of 

the application submittal. The Stormwater Management Plan and all stormwater control 

measures shall be designed by a state registered professional, shall meet the most current 

edition of the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality’s (NCDEQ) 

Stormwater Design Manual, and shall be supported by the appropriate calculations, plan 



 Highway Corridor Overlay District – Staff Report 
 
 

sheets, grading plans, planting plans and details and specifications. The post 

development peak flow discharged rates shall not exceed the pre-development peak 

discharge rates for all storms up to and including the 25-year, 24-hour event. Prior to a 

Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall confirm the completed project is in 

accordance with the approved stormwater management plan, certified by a state registered 

professional, and shall submit “as-built” plans for all stormwater management measures 

after final construction is complete.   

K. Building Standards  

 

1. Setbacks 

a. The front building 

setback from the 

highway ROW is 75 

feet. The building 

setback for internal lots 

with access to an 

internal street ROW 

shall be 40 feet.           

b. The building setback 

from residential 

districts is  50 feet .  

c. The building setback from non-residential districts is 25 feet. 

 

2. Building Design - Design standards required in the Urban Transition COD only.   

a. Entrances. Principal building entrances shall be oriented to public streets or 

towards the corners of streets.  

b. Utilities. Utility services shall be located underground. Wooden poles are 

prohibited.  

c. Wall Materials. Exterior walls shall be at least 60% glass, brick, stone, cementitious 

siding, and wood clapboard siding on all sides of the building. Pitched roofs shall 

be clad in wood shingles, standing seam metal, slate, or asphalt shingles. 

Manufactured, mobile, portable storage units, and metal units are prohibited, 

except for temporary construction, sales trailers, or storage uses during 

construction. Brick veneers, Corrugated metal, plywood, particleboard, untreated 

wood, and similar material are prohibited.  

d. Maintenance. All exterior surfaces, which have or have not been painted, shall be 

maintained free of peeling, or flaking paint or stucco. Rotten or weakened portions 

shall be removed and/or replaced to match as closely as possible the original 

patterns.  



 Highway Corridor Overlay District – Staff Report 
 
 

e. Façade Colors. Façade colors shall be of low reflectance earth tone, muted, or subtle 

or neutral colors. Building trim may feature brighter colors, but neon tubing is not 

allowed as an accent material. The use of high-intensity, bright, metallic, 

fluorescent or neon colors are prohibited.  

f. Windows. Except for civic and industrial buildings, a window or functional 

general access doorway shall be located along the length of the façade at least 

every 20 feet of the first floor on ROW fronting facades. Windows shall be visually 

permeable.   

g. Accessory Buildings and Shopping Centers. All accessory buildings and structures 

shall be of similar design, materials, and color as the principle structure. All 

accessory structures are not permitted in the front yard.   

3. Height 

a. The maximum building or structure height shall not exceed 35 feet.  

b. All mechanical, electrical, communications, and service equipment, including 

satellite dishes shall be set back from the edge of the roof a minimum distance of 1 

foot for every foot the feature extends above the roof surface. Screen or parapet 

walls shall be constructed to the height of any fixture taller than 3 feet in height 

that would be visible from a street or residential abutting property.  

c. Flagpoles and similar devices shall be limited to 35 feet in height.  

L. Fences. Fences may be used for side and rear yards only. In addition to Type 1 standards 

the following shall apply: Chain link fences shall be vinyl coated of a neutral color such 

as green, brown, or black. Vinyl and Wood Board / Shadow Box / Solid, is permitted 

provided that the board width (vertical members) is not less than 4 inches nominal and 

not more than 10 inches nominal. Wood fences greater than 4 feet in height are required to 

have a minimum of 3 horizontal rails (does not apply to vinyl fences).  

M. Parking 

1. Setback. Front parking 

setback from highway ROW 

line is 50 feet. The parking 

setback for internal lots with 

access to an internal street 

ROW shall be 40 feet.  

2. Location. A development 

with 75 or fewer parking 

spaces shall have a 

maximum of 2 rows of 

parking spaces between any 

street and the front elevation of a building. All other parking must be located on the 

side or rear of the building. Developments with more than 75 parking spaces must 

have parking on at least 3 sides of the building with not more than 30% of the parking 

spaces located in the front of the building.  



 Highway Corridor Overlay District – Staff Report 
 
 

3. Paving. Paving is required in the Urban Transition COD only. Suitable paving 

materials for required parking and driveway areas include, but are not limited to 

asphalt, porous asphalt, porous paving blocks, and concrete. The use of grass is 

permitted for satellite parking areas.  

4. Striping. Striping is required in the Urban Transition COD only. The individual 

parking spaces in a lot shall be delineated in all parking lots except those utilizing 

road bond, gravel, or grass surfacing.  

5. Curbing. Curbing is required in the Urban Transition COD only. Each parking space 

shall be provided with curbing or a tire stop.  

6. Maintenance. Parking areas shall be maintained to provide for vehicle access and shall 

be kept free of litter, debris, outdoor display and sales and material storage, including 

portable containers. 

7. Service Areas. Parking for service vehicles and loading areas shall be designated, 

located, and screened with Type 1 or Type 2 Screening to minimize the view from 

adjacent properties and rights-of-way, at the rear of the buildings.  

8. Compact Spaces. Up to 20% of the total number of spaces required may be provided 

by compact or alternative transportation spaces, no less than 8 feet in width. Parking 

may also accommodate electric vehicle charging stations.  

9. Storage. The parking area may be used only for parking and not for any type of 

loading, sales, dead storage, or repair work.  

10. Stacking. Where drive-thru or drive-up facilities are provided, space shall be provided 

to accommodate not less than three cars per stacking lane.  

 

N. Access 

1. Access standards are required in the Urban Transition COD only. Within a 

development, safe and easy-to-use circulation is an important design principle. All 

adjoining parcels serving (or potentially serving) non-residential or multifamily uses 

shall be interconnected as follows: 

a. Interconnectivity. All parking 

lots shall dedicate access 

easements and provide 

interconnectivity to adjoining 

properties. The connection is at 

least 20 feet wide. If applicable, 

the connection aligns with a 

connection that has been 

previously constructed on an 

adjacent property.  

b. Street Frontage. Any lot that is 

to be created or any existing lot 

on which a structure is to be 

erected or a use to be 



 Highway Corridor Overlay District – Staff Report 
 
 

established shall be accessible to a public or private street right-of-way. Access 

through easements is not permitted.   

c. Driveways. The maximum driveway width is 36 feet. The maximum number of 

driveways per lot is 2. Where two (2) or more driveways are located on the same lot, 

the minimum distance between such drives shall be thirty (30) feet. The minimum 

distance from an intersection or adjoining driveway is 100 feet, except in the case 

where no other lot access to a street is available. Common driveways on adjoining 

lots are recommended.  

 

O. Screening along Highway. The required buffer 

planting from the ROW lines shall be a 50-foot-wide buffer 10 long leaf pines, 8 18 trees (at 

least half evergreen), and 25 shrubs per 100 linear feet of buffer area. New or supplemental 

trees shall be planted with the intent to grow to 10 feet within 5 years. New or 

supplemental shrubs shall be planted with the intent to grow to 5 feet within 5 years. 

Vegetation shall be distributed along the entire length and width of the planted buffer. A 

mixture of plant types is recommended to mitigate the spread of disease. 

P. Vehicular Use Screening  

a. Perimeter Parking Screening. Perimeter parking screening is required in the Urban 

Transition COD only. New or supplemental trees shall be planted with the intent to 

grow to 10 feet within 5 years. Shrubs shall with the intent to grow to 3 feet within 3 

years. All off-street parking, loading areas, and service areas shall be screened from 

view by use of one or more of the following: 

a. A building, 

b. Stone or brick wall (side and rear yards only),  

c. 1 tree, excluding longleaf pine, per 30 feet and 1 shrub per 3 feet (rounding up),  

d. Perimeter screening (Type 1, 2, or 3) alongside property lines located not more than 

20 feet from parking edge. Refer to fencing standards within this Section for Type 

1.   

 



 Highway Corridor Overlay District – Staff Report 
 
 

 

2. Screening Within Vehicle Use Area. Screening standards are required in the Urban 

Transition COD only. In addition to exterior screening requirements,  trees shall 

be installed in planting areas within parking lots to provide shade coverage and 

break up large areas of impermeable surface allowing areas for water infiltration 

New or supplemental trees shall be planted with the intent to grow to 10 feet 

within 5 years. Planting areas shall meet the following:  

a. Trees. 2 trees, excluding longleaf pine, per 10 spaces of vehicular use area 

(rounding up). Landscaped areas surrounded by impervious surfaces shall have a 

minimum width of 9 feet and include a minimum of 150 square feet of open 

planting area for trees. Trees shall be even distributed throughout the vehicular 

use area.  

b. Shrubs. 4 evergreen shrubs per 10 spaces of vehicular use area (rounding up).  

c. Groundcover. Each planting shall be landscaped with mulch, groundcover, shrubs, 

or grass to protect against soil erosion.  

d. Barriers. Barriers, such as wheel stops or 6-inch standard curbs, must be provided 

between vehicular use areas and landscaped areas.  

 



 Highway Corridor Overlay District – Staff Report 
 
 

Q. Dumpster, Mechanical and Electrical Equipment, Outdoor Storage Screening. All storage 

facilities shall be located to the rear of the primary building and shielded from any public 

roadway or adjacent property by means of  Type 1 (chained link is prohibited) or Type 2 

screening, unless already screened by a buffer yard. Dumpster screening shall be at least 5 

feet in height.   

R. Signs. Max pole sign is not above the roofline (30 foot maximum). The maximum height is 

6 feet. Sign colors shall be uniform between the ground sign and wall sign. Colors shall 

be muted. Off-premises signs are prohibited.  

S. Lighting 

a. Dark Sky Illumination. Light source locations shall be chosen to minimize the hazards 

of glare. The ratio of spacing to mounting height shall not exceed a four to one ratio.  

b. Sign illumination. Electronic changeable message signs are prohibited.   

c. Parking Lot Lighting. The maximum mounting height of illumination is 30 feet from 

the ground to the light source. Light poles and fixtures shall be a matte or low-gloss 

grey, black, dark earthen, or bronze finish to minimize glare from the light source.  

d. Exterior Lighting. The maximum average-maintained illumination is 3.0 lumens per 

square feet at the property line.  The light source must be white light. The use of laser 

source light or any similar high intensity light for outdoor entertainment or 

advertisement is prohibited. Awnings and canopies shall not be illuminated 

internally. 

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Hold the Public Hearing. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
This action will have no financial impact on the FY 2020-2021 budget. 
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Board met on July 2, 2020 and unanimously recommended approval. (5-0) 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
This action requires (2) motions: 
 
Motion #1 - Make a motion to APPROVE OR DENY the Board of Commissioners Consistency 
Statement as required per NCGS 153A-341 and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 
Motion #2 – Make a motion to APPROVE OR DENY the proposed amendments to the Moore 
County Unified Development Ordinance regarding Highway Corridor Overlay District Development 
Standards. 



                     * PO Drawer 1510 * Fayetteville * NC * 28302 * Tel: (910) 583-1233 *  director@rluac.com * 
 

 
 

MOORE COUNTY 
Proposed Text Amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance 

 – Highway Corridor Overlay District 
 

March 23, 2020 
 

The Regional Land Use Advisory Commission (RLUAC) staff and Board of Directors 

have reviewed all the proposed text amendments for the Highway Corridor Overlay 

District contained in the Moore County Unified Development Ordinance and find no 

conflicts with the recommendations contained in the recently completed and adopted 

2018 Fort Bragg Joint Land Use Study.  

 

Thank you for allowing RLUAC the opportunity to review these proposed changes. 

 

       

           John K. McNeill, Chairman 

 

           Pete Campbell, Executive Director 



Moore County Board of Commissioners 

Land Use Plan Consistency Statement 

Text Amendment - Unified Development Ordinance 

 

The Moore County Board of Commissioners finds that:  

 

1. The text amendment request is consistent with the following goals in the 2013 

Moore County Land Use Plan: 
 

GOAL 1: Preserve and Protect the Ambiance and Heritage of the County of 

Moore (inclusive of areas around municipalities).  

• Recommendation 1.5: Encourage and support development and land use 

principles by ensuring Moore County’s cultural, economical, and natural 

resources are considered appropriately. 

 

GOAL 4: Provide Information and Seek Citizen Participation: 

• Action 4.1.1: Continue to support and implement easy to understand 

guidelines to incorporate throughout governmental departments. 
 

2. The text amendment is consistent with the Goals listed above due to providing 

the public with a transparent permitting process.  

 

3. The text amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because the 

ordinance has been updated to meet current statutory requirements and be more 

user-friendly for use by the general public and development community.  
 

Therefore, the Moore County Board of Commissioners recommends 

APPROVAL of the text amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance, as 

proposed. 

 

 

__________________________________________          _________________________ 

Frank Quis, Chair                             Date 

Moore County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Moore County Board of Commissioners  

Land Use Plan Consistency Statement 

Text Amendment - Unified Development Ordinance 

 

The Moore County Board of Commissioners finds that:  

 

1. The text amendment request is not consistent with the 2013 Moore County 

Land Use Plan.  

 

2. The proposed text amendment is not reasonable and not in the public 

interest because the proposed amendment will have an unreasonable 

impact on the surrounding community. 

 

Therefore, the Moore County Board of Commissioners recommends DENIAL of 

the text amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance, as proposed. 

 

 

__________________________________________          _________________________ 

Frank Quis, Chair                             Date 

Moore County Board of Commissioners 

 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

Agenda Item ___ 
Meeting Date: October 20, 2020 

 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director 
 
DATE:  May 20, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Unified Development Ordinance Text Amendments –                          

Statutory Updates Session Law 2019-111 & 2019-79 and Quarterly 
Updates                                         

   
PRESENTER: Debra Ensminger 
 

 
REQUEST 
Moore County Planning Staff is requesting the following text amendments to the Moore County 
Unified Development Ordinance due to recent statutory updates per Session Law 2019-111 and 
Session Law 2019-79 and Quarterly Text Amendments 
 
Bold Text – additions to the ordinance 

Strikethrough Text - deletions from the ordinance 

1. AMEND Chapter 4 (Zoning Permits), Section 4.6 (Expiration), as follows: 

 
Expiration. Unless otherwise specified by statute, once a zoning permit has been issued, all 
activities pursuant to such permit shall be substantially commenced within 6 months 1 year of 
issuance. Unless provided otherwise by statute, if the proposed moving, constructing, altering, 
repairing, or other use of land, as set forth in an application for a zoning permit, is substantially 
commenced and the development work is intentionally and voluntarily discontinued for a 
period of 1 2 years or more after commencement, the permit and vesting shall lapse expire and 
be of no further force and effect.  

 

REASON. Required by state statute (NCGS 153A-344(c) & (e), Session Law 2019-111) 

 

 

 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VII.D.



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

2. ADD Chapter 6 (Table of Uses), Section 6.1 (Use Table), as follows: 

 

INDUSTRIAL USES 

R
A

-2
0 

R
A

-4
0 

R
A

-2
 

R
A

-5
 

G
C

SL
 

G
C

W
L 

R
E

 

R
A

-U
SB

 

R
A

 

P-
C

 

V
B

 

B
-1

 

B
-2

 

I 

Specific Use 
Standards 

Bldg. Code 
Group 

PRODUCTION 

Manufacturing & Sales, Pottery          P  P P P P 8.92 F 

 

REASON. Staff recommends adding “Pottery Manufacturing & Sales” as a permitted use in the 
Rural Agricultural Zoning District and commercial zoning districts to support the pottery 
community of Moore County.   

 

3. AMEND Chapter 7 (General Development Standards), 7.15 (Signs), Subsection K. 
(Electronic Changeable Message Signs), as follows: 

 
K. Electronic Changeable Message Signs. Shall only be permitted in the Village Business (VB), 

Neighborhood Business District (B-1), and Highway Commercial (B-2) zoning districts. 
Advertising messages or information shall remain in a fixed, static position for a minimum of 
30 seconds. The change sequence must be accomplished within an interval of 2 seconds or less. 
Electronic changeable message signs shall be setback a minimum of 25 feet from any property 
used or zoned for residential purposes. Additionally, electronic changeable message signs 
are permitted at religious institutions or governmental / public agencies located in a 
residential zoning district. 

 

REASON. Allows churches to have electronic changeable message signs.  

 

4. AMEND Chapter 8 (Specific Use Standards), Section 8.12 (Home Occupation, Level 2), 
Subsection B (Standards), as follows: 

 

Standards. One (1) home occupation shall be permitted per lot. Level 2 Home Occupations shall 
be limited to a maximum of 50% of the gross floor area of the principal building, the entirety of 
an accessory building, or a combination thereof. The operator of the home occupation must reside 
on the same lot as the operation. More than one individual, not a resident of the dwelling may be 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

employed. The specific use to be operated as the home occupation must comply with the specific 
use’s standards, signage, parking, outdoor storage, screening, and other applicable regulations.  
The following uses are those that have been determined to be suitable as a Level 2 Home 
Occupation: 

1. Animal Shelters  

2. Kennels, Overnight  

3. Pet Day Care, Grooming, Obedience Training  

4. Small Appliance Repair Shop (may include outdoor storage)  

5. Trade Contractor Office and Workshop (may include outdoor storage)  

6. Feed and Seed Sales  

7. Florist  

8. Garden Center  

9. Taxi Service  

10. Vehicle, Auto Parts, Tires, Farm Equipment, Boat, RV - Sales, Rental, Service  

11. Child Care Facility (for accessory buildings only)   

12. Recreation, Low Impact Outdoor   

 

REASON. Clarifies that “Child Care Home Facility” is a separate use.  

 

5. AMEND Chapter 8 (Specific Use Standards), Section 8.71 (Religious Institutions), 
Subsection B (Accessory Uses), as follows: 

 

Accessory Uses. Includes pastor’s housing, Sunday school buildings, recreational buildings 
utilized by congregation only, fellowship halls, food pantry, childcare facility, school, coffee 
house, bible school, and after-school facilities. Childcare facilities shall meet the applicable 
specific use standards per Section 8.63 and shall submit a copy of state licenses before a Certificate 
of Occupancy is issued.  Schools located on the same lot as the church and located in residential 
zoning districts shall require a Conditional Use Permit and meet the Specific Use Standards per 
Section 8.71. 

 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

REASON. Removes section numbers due to being subject to changes.  

 

6. ADD Chapter 8 (Specific Use Standards), Section 8.92 (Pottery Manufacturing & Sales), as 
follows: 

 

A. Definition. The process of forming objects with clay and other ceramic materials.  

B. Standards. Potteries may be a principal use or an accessory use to residential or 
agricultural uses. Potteries may include teaching workshops, studios, galleries, and 
retail sales.  

 

REASON. Staff recommends adding “Pottery Manufacturing & Sales” as a permitted use to 
support the pottery community of Moore County.   

 

7. AMEND Chapter 9 (Nonconforming Situations), Section 9.2 (Continuation), as follows: 

 

Continuation: Unless otherwise specified by statute, legal nonconforming uses, buildings, 
structures, and signs may be continued until they are intentionally and voluntarily removed, 
discontinued, dilapidated, or destroyed for a period of 2 years. If a legal nonconforming use is 
intentionally and voluntarily discontinued, as evidenced by the disconnection of electrical or 
utility service for a period of one year (365 days), 2 years, the nonconforming use shall expire 
and any future use of the building, structure, or land shall comply with the provisions of this 
ordinance.  
 

REASON: Required by State Statute (NCGS 153A-344(e), Session Law 2019-111) 

 

8. AMEND Chapter 11 (Conditional Rezoning), Section 11.2 (Application Process), 
Subsection F (Additional Conditions), as follows: 

 

Additional Conditions: Specific additional conditions applicable to the rezoning request may be 
proposed by the applicant, the Planning Board, or Board of Commissioners. Only those conditions 
mutually approved by the county and consented to by the applicant in writing may be 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

incorporated into the permit requirements. Unless the applicant consents in writing to the 
conditions, the conditions are not effective and the zoning may not include any conditions or 
requirements not otherwise authorized by law. If a proposed condition is unacceptable to the 
owner applicant, the petition can be withdrawn and the proposed rezoning cannot go forward. 
Likewise, if a condition is unacceptable to the Board of Commissioners, the petition can be denied 
and there is no rezoning. Per NCGS 153A-342(Bb), conditions and site-specific standards 
imposed in a conditional district shall be limited to those that address the conformance of the 
development and use of the site to County ordinances and an officially adopted comprehensive 
or other plans and those that address the impacts reasonably expected to be generated by the 
development or use of the site. Additionally, the applicant must consent in writing to the 
conditions in order for those conditions to be effective.  

REASON:  Required by State Statutes (NCGS 153A-342, Session Law 2019-111).  

 

9. AMEND Chapter 12 (Conditional Use Permits), Section 12.2 (Application Process), 
Subsection C (Additional Conditions), as follows: 

 

Additional Conditions:   In accordance with NCGS 160A-388© 153A-340(c1), in approving an 
application, the Board of Commissioners may attach impose fair and reasonable and appropriate 
conditions and safeguards to the approval which assure that the required findings are upheld met. 
Such conditions may include, but are not limited to, right-of-way or easement dedication, 
recreation or open space, buffer provisions, limitation in scale, intensity, hours of operation, and 
other reasonable restrictions. Conditions and safeguards imposed shall not include 
requirements for which the county does not have authority under statute to regulate nor 
requirements for which the courts have held to be unenforceable if imposed directly by the 
county, including, without limitation, taxes, impact fees, building design elements within the 
scope of subsection NCGS 153-340(l), driveway-related improvements in excess of those 
allowed in NCGS 136-18(29) and NCGS 160A-307, or other unauthorized limitations on the 
development or use of land. Design restrictions may still be imposed in compliance with 
NCGS 153A-340(l) and NCGS 160A-381(h), which allow design restrictions for commercial 
and multi-family development, in historic districts, or with the voluntary written consent 
from the property owners. 

 

REASON:  Required by state statutes (NCGS 153A-340(c1) & (l), NCGS 160A-307, NCGS 
160A-381(h), Session Law 2019-111). 

 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

10. ADD Chapter 13 (Appeals & Variances), Section 13.1 (Administrative Appeals), 
Subsection F (Standing), as follows: 

 

Standing:   The following criteria are used to determine whether an individual has standing 
to bring civil actions for declaratory relief, injunctive relief or other remedies and joinder 
of complaint and petition for writ of certiorari in certain cases against administrative 
decisions in lieu of bringing an appeal to the board of adjustment under NCGS 160A-
188(b1):  

1. The person has ownership, leasehold, or easement interest in, or possesses an option 
or contract to; purchase the property that is the subject matter of a final and 
binding decision made by an administrative official charged with applying or 
enforcing a land development regulation. 

2. The person was a development-permit applicant before the decision-making board 
whose decision is being challenged. 

3. The person was a development-permit applicant who is aggrieved by a final and 
binding decision of an administrative official charged with applying or enforcing a 
land development regulation. 

 
Subject to the limitations in the State and federal constitutions and State and federal case 
law, an action filed is not rendered moot if the party loses the relevant property interest as 
a result of the administrative action being appealed, and exhaustion of an appeal is 
required to preserve a claim for damages under NCGS 160A-393.1. 

 

REASON:  Required by State Statute (160A-393.1(c), Session Law 2019-111). 

 

11. AMEND Chapter 13 (Appeals & Variances), Section 13.6 (Appeals to Court), as follows: 

 
A. Quasi-Judicial Decisions. Quasi-judicial decisions shall be appealed to Superior Court 

pursuant to Section 2.1(B). 

B. Circumventing the Board of Adjustments. Except as otherwise provided in this 
ordinance or other applicable law, a person with standing may bring an original civil 
action seeking declaratory relief, injunctive relief, damages, or any other remedies 
provided by law or equity in superior court or federal court to challenge the 
enforceability, validity, or effect of a local land development regulation for any of the 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

following claims: the ordinance is unconstitutional; the ordinance is ultra vires, 
preempted or otherwise beyond statutory authority; or the ordinance constitutes a 
taking of property. When these issues are raised, appeals of administrative permit 
decisions, issuance of notices of violation, determinations of vested rights, and other 
administrative decisions may go straight to court. Appeals of ordinance interpretation 
must still go to the Board of Adjustment before being appealed to court. If an 
applicant is appealing a notice of violation and disputes the fact of the violation (a 
question of fact, not a constitutional challenge or a question of statutory authority), 
that appeal still goes to the Board of Adjustment. 

C. Administrative Decisions. If the decision being challenged is an ordinance 
interpretation from the Administrator, the party with standing must first bring the 
appeal to the Board of Adjustment pursuant to NCGS 160A-388(b1) before being 
appealed to court. An adverse ruling from the Board of Adjustment may then be 
challenged in a court action brought pursuant to NCGS 160A-393.1(b) with the court 
hearing the matter de novo together with any other claims listed in NCGS 160A-
393.1(b). 

D. Time for Commencement of Action. Any action brought pursuant to NCGS 160A-
393.1 shall be commenced within 1 year after the date on which written notice of the 
final decision is delivered to the aggrieved party by personal delivery, electronic mail, 
or by first-class mail. 

E. Fines Stayed During Appeal. The accumulations of fines are stayed when a notice of 
violation or other enforcement order is appealed to the Board of Adjustment or Court. 
The enforcement of other actions appealed from is also stayed unless otherwise 
provided by statute. 

 

REASON:   Required by state statute (NCGS 160A-388(b1)(6), NCGS 160A-393.1(a)(b)(c) 
&(d), Session Law 2019-111). 

 

12. MOVE Chapter 14 (Vested Rights), Section 14.2 (Valid Building Permit) to Section 14.3 
and REPLACE & ADD Chapter 14 (Vested Rights), Section 14.2 (Development Permit), as 
follows: 

 

Development Permit:  Development permits for a building, use of a building, use of land, or 
subdivision of land establishes statutory vested rights. A development permit is valid for 1 
year after issuance, unless otherwise specified by statute, and the applicant is vested in that 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

permit for the term of validity. If the applicant fails to substantially commence authorized 
work within 1 year, then the development permit and vesting expire. With the substantial 
commencement of authorized work under a valid permit, vesting continues. The 
development permit and vesting also expire after substantial work commences if there is a 
2-year period of intentional and voluntary discontinuance of work after commencement 
unless otherwise specified by statute. 

 

REASON:  Required by state statute (NCGS 153A-344(c) & (e), Session Law 2019-111). 

 

13. MOVE Chapter 14 (Vested Rights), Section 14.3 to Section 14.4 (Site Specific 
Development Plans & Phased Development Plans, and AMEND as follows: 

Site Specific Development Plans & Phased Development Plans 

A. Applicability. The ability of the applicant to obtain a vested right after County approval of 
a site specific development plan or a phased development plan presents an appropriate 
balance between private expectations and the public interest, while also protecting the 
public health, safety, and welfare.  A statutory vested right is a right established pursuant 
to NCGS 153A-344.1 to undertake and complete the development and use of a property 
under the terms and conditions of an approved site-specific development plan or phased 
development plan. 

B. Vesting Established. Statutory vesting shall be deemed established with respect to any 
property on the same day upon the valid approval, or conditional approval, of a site specific 
development plan or a phased development plan, following notice and public hearing by 
the County. 

C. Site Specific Development Plan. A site specific development plan includes but is not 
limited to any of the following plans or approvals: a planned unit development plan, a 
preliminary major subdivision plat, a preliminary or general development plan, a 
conditional or special use permit, or a conditional or special use district zoning district 
plan, or any other land-use approval designation as may be utilized by a county. For 
preliminary subdivision plats, the Administrator will advertise and schedule a public 
hearing following the same procedure used for conditional or special use permits. 

D. Phased Development Plan. A phased development plan includes any approvals for a phased 
development which shows the type and intensity of use for a specific parcel or parcels with 
a lesser degree of certainty than the plan determined by the county to be a site specific 
development plan. The County may require the landowner to submit a site-specific 
development plan for approval with respect to each phase or phases in order to obtain final 
approval to develop within the restrictions of the vested zoning classifications. Multi-



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

phased developments as approved and defined in NCGS 153A-344.1(b)(7) shall remain 
vested for a period of 7 years.   

E. Duration. The site-specific development plan or phased development plan vested rights is 
valid for a minimum of 2 years from the date of approval. The Board of Commissioners 
may authorize the approval for a period not exceeding 5 years where  warranted in light of 
all relevant circumstances including, but not limited to, the size and phasing of the 
development, the level of investment, the need for development, economic cycles, and 
market conditions. The vesting shall not be extended by any amendments or modifications 
to a site-specific development plan unless expressly provided by the County.   

F. Termination. A vested right shall terminate: 

1. At the end of the applicable vesting period with respect to buildings and uses for which 
no valid building permit applications have been filed. 

2. With the written consent of the affected landowner.  

3. To the extent that the affected landowner receives compensation for all costs, expenses,  
and other losses incurred by the landowner; 

4. Upon findings by the Board of Commissioners, by Ordinance after notice and a hearing, 
that the landowner or his representative intentionally supplied inaccurate information 
or made material misrepresentations which made a difference in the approval by the 
approval authority County of the site specific development plan; or 

5. Upon the enactment or promulgation of a State or federal law or regulation that 
precludes development as contemplated in the site-specific development plan; or 

6. Upon findings, by the Board of Commissioners, by ordinance after notice and a 
public hearing, that natural or man-made hazards on or in the immediate vicinity 
of the property, if uncorrected, would pose a serious threat to the public health, 
safety, and welfare if the project were to proceed as contemplated in the site 
specific development plan. 

 

REASON:  Required by State Statute (NCGS 153A-344, Session Law 2019-111) Relocated 
Multi-Phase Development Plans to a separate section.   

 

14. MOVE Chapter 14 (Vested Rights), Section 14.5 (Development Agreements) to Section 
14.7 and REPLACE & ADD Chapter 14 (Vested Rights), Section 14.5 (Multi-Phased 
Developments), as follows: 

 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

Multi-Phased Development Plans 

A multi-phased development is defined to be a development containing 25 acres or more to 
be developed in more than 1 phase and subject to a master development plan with 
committed elements showing the type and intensity of use of each phase. The entire 
multiphase development is vested at the time of site plan approval for the initial phase. The 
vesting is in the Ordinance regulations in place at the time of that initial approval, and the 
vesting lasts for 7 years from the initial approval. 

 

REASON:  Required by state statutes (NCGS 153A-344, NCGS 153A-344.1, Session Law 
2019-111). 

 

15. MOVE Chapter 14 (Vested Rights), Section 14.4 to Section 14.6 (Permit Choice), and 
AMEND as follows: 

 
 

A. Purpose. Per NCGS 153A-320.1 and 143-755, if a permit applicant submits a permit 
application for any type of development and a rule or ordinance changes between the time the 
permit application was submitted and a permit decision is made, the permit applicant may 
choose which version of the rule or ordinance will apply to the permit. If a development 
permit applicant submits a permit application for any type of development and a rule 
or ordinance is amended, including an amendment to any applicable land development 
regulation, between the time the development permit application was submitted and a 
development permit decision is made, the development permit applicant may choose 
which adopted version of the rule or ordinance will apply to the permit and use of the 
building, structure, or land indicated on the permit application. 

B. Expiration. The permit choice rule may expire if an applicant delays. If an applicant 
puts a permit application on hold for 6 consecutive months or more, or if an applicant 
fails to respond to the Planning Board and/or Board of Commissioners’ requests for 
additional information for 6 consecutive months or more, then the application is 
discontinued. If the permit application is resumed, it will be reviewed under the rules in 
effect at that time. 

C. Subsequent Development Permits. If an applicant obtains an initial development permit, 
that permit triggers permit choice for subsequent development permits under the rules 
applicable at the time of application for the initial development permit. That protection 
continues for 18 months after the approval of the initial development permit. The 
applicant must be actively pursuing that original application to maintain the permit 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

choice rights for other development regulations. The initial development permit cannot 
be a sign permit or erosion and sedimentation control permit. 

D. Appeal. Any person aggrieved by the local government failing to comply with the permit 
choice rule can seek a court order compelling compliance. The court will set down the 
action for immediate hearing, and subsequent proceedings must get priority from the 
court. 

 

REASON: Required by state statutes (NCGS 143A-755, NCGS 160A-385(e), Session Law 
2019-111). 

 

16. MOVE Chapter 14 (Vested Rights), Section 14.5 to Section 14.7 (Development 
Agreement). 

 

REASON:  For the sections of Chapter 14 to be in proper sequence.  

 

17. ADD Chapter 14 (Vested Rights), Section 14.8 (Appeal), as follows: 

 

Appeal: Refer to Section 13.6 (Appeals to Court).  

 

REASON:  Required by state statutes (NCGS 160A-393.1(a)(b)(c) & (d), Session Law 2019-
111). 

 

18. ADD Chapter 18 (Subdivisions), Section 18.13 (Performance Guarantees for Major 
Subdivisions), Subsection B (Duration), as follows: 

 
Duration: The initial term of the performance guarantee shall be one year unless the 
developer elects a longer term. When the financial instrument is a bond, the completion 
date for the bonded obligation shall be one year from the date the bond is issued, unless the 
developer elects a longer term.  

REASON: Required by state statutes (NCGS 160A-372, Session Law 2019-79).).   



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

 

19. MOVE Chapter 18 (Subdivisions), Section 18.13 (Performance Guarantees for Major 
Subdivisions), Subsections as follows: 

 
Subsection B to Subsection C (Release) 

Subsection C to Subsection D (Extension) 

Subsection D to Subsection E (Claim of Rights) 

 

REASON:  For the subsections of Section 18.13 (Performance Guarantees for Major 
Subdivisions) to be in proper sequence.  

 

20. AMEND Chapter 19 (Definitions), Section 19.2 (Definitions), (Lot of Record, 
Nonconforming) as follows: 

 

Lot of Record, Nonconforming. A lot, the area, dimensions, or location of which was duly 
recorded pursuant to statute in the Office of Register of Deeds, lawfully existing at the effective 
date of this ordinance or prior freestanding zoning and subdivision ordinances that cannot meet 
the minimum size and/or lot width requirements of the district in which the lot is located.   

 

REASON. Clarifies that nonconforming lots of record should have been legally existing at the 
effective date of this ordinance or prior freestanding ordinances.   

 

21. AMEND & ADD Chapter 19 (Definitions), Section 19.2 (Definitions) (Development, 
Development Permit, Land Development Regulation), as follows: 

 

Development:  The act of bringing about growth; to construct or alter a structure, to make a 
change in use or appearance of land, to divide land into parcels, or to create or terminate rights of 
access. Development is defined to include:  

a. The construction, erection, alteration, enlargement, renovation, substantial 
repair, movement to another site, or demolition of any structure. 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

b. Excavation, grading, filling, clearing, or alteration of land. 

c. The subdivision of land as defined in G.S. 153A-335 or G.S. 160A-376. 

d. The initiation of substantial change in the use of land or the intensity of the use of 
land. 

Development Permit:  An administrative or quasi-judicial approval that is written and that 
is required prior to commencing development or undertaking a specific activity, project, or 
development proposal, including any of the following:  

a. Zoning permits. 

b. Site plan approvals. 

c. Special use permits. 

d. Variances. 

e. Certificates of appropriateness. 

f. Plat approvals. 

g. Development agreements. 

h. Building permits. 

i. Subdivision of land. 

j. State agency permits for development. 

k. Driveway permits. 

l. Erosion and sedimentation control permits. 

m. Sign permit. 

 

Land Development Regulation. Land development regulation is defined to be any State 
statute, rule, or regulation, or local ordinance affecting the development or use of real 
property, including any of the following: 

a. Unified development ordinance. 

b. Zoning regulation, including zoning maps. 

c. Subdivision regulation. 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

d. Erosion and sedimentation control regulation. 

e. Floodplain or flood damage prevention regulation. 

f. Mountain ridge protection regulation. 

g. Storm water control regulation. 

h. Wireless telecommunication facility regulation. 

i. Historic preservation or landmark regulation. 

j. Housing code. 

REASON:  Required by state statutes (NCGS 143-755(e), Session Law 2019-111). 

 

22. AMEND Chapter 19 (Definitions), Definition (Family), as follows: 

 

Family:  One or more individuals residing in a dwelling, living as a single housekeeping unit, and 
complying with the following rules: 

a. Any number of individuals related by blood, marriage, or adoption may occupy a dwelling 
unit. 

b. Where some or all of the occupants are unrelated by blood, marriage, or adoption, the total 
number of occupants that are unrelated, shall not exceed three. In applying this provision, 
children who are under the age of 23 and who are children of the owner or a person renting 
an entire dwelling unit from the owner shall be counted as a single occupant.  

c. Where a reasonable accommodation has been approved. 

d. The presence of household employees or children in foster care shall not disqualify any 
premises otherwise satisfying the above rules. 

Family:  One or more persons occupying a dwelling unit and living as a single household.  

 

REASON:  The current definition of “family” limits the number of unrelated person living as a 
family which contradicts the building code definition of dwelling unit” which is for one or more 
persons. Required by State Statute (153A-346, Section 202 of 2018 State Building Code, Session 
Law 2019-111). 

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Hold the Public Hearing. 



 
 

UDO Text Amendments – Statutory Updates & Quarterly Updates– Staff Report  
  

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
This action will not have a financial impact on the County of Moore FY 20-21 Budget. 
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board met on March 5, 2020 and unanimously recommend approval of the 
Quarterly Text Amendments. 
 
The Planning Board met on July 2, 2020 and unanimously recommended approval of the 
Statutory Updates. 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH THE ADOPTED 2013 LAND USE PLAN 
The Board of Commissioners Consistency Statement which speaks to Land Use Plan goals is 
included for the Board’s review and consideration. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Moore County Board Commissioners make two separate motions: 
 
Motion #1: Make a motion to adopt the attached Moore County Board of Commissioners Land 
Use Plan Consistency Statement (Approval) or (Denial) and authorize the Chairman to execute 
the document as required by North Carolina General Statute 153A-341.  
 
Motion #2: Make a motion to (Approve) or (Deny) the proposed text amendments to the Moore 
County Unified Development Ordinance as presented. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• RLUAC (Regional Land Use Advisory Commission) Review Letter 
• Board of Commissioners Consistency Statement – Approval 
• Board of Commissioners Consistency Statement - Denial 

  
 



                     * PO Drawer 1510 * Fayetteville * NC * 28302 * Tel: (910) 583-1233 *  director@rluac.com * 
 

 
 

MOORE COUNTY 
Proposed Text Amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance; Chapter 3 

Section 3.13 (Parallel Conditional Zoning Districts) and Subsequent Amendments to 
Chapters 6, 7, 8, 11 and 19 

 
February 21, 2020 

 
The Regional Land Use Advisory Commission (RLUAC) staff and Board of Directors 
have reviewed all the proposed text amendments, in particular Chapter3 Section 3.13, for 
the Moore County Unified Development Ordinance and find no conflicts with the 
recommendations contained in the recently completed and adopted 2018 Fort Bragg Joint 
Land Use Study.  
 
Thank you for allowing RLUAC the opportunity to review these proposed changes. 
 
       
           John K. McNeill, Chairman 
 
           Pete Campbell, Executive Director 



                     * PO Drawer 1510 * Fayetteville * NC * 28302 * Tel: (910) 583-1233 *  director@rluac.com * 
 

 
 

MOORE COUNTY 
Proposed Text Amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance; Statutory 
Updates 

June 19, 2020 
 

The Regional Land Use Advisory Commission (RLUAC) staff and Board of Directors 
have reviewed all the proposed statutory update text amendments for the Moore County 
Unified Development Ordinance and find no conflicts with the recommendations 
contained in the recently completed and adopted 2018 Fort Bragg Joint Land Use Study.  
 
Thank you for allowing RLUAC the opportunity to review these proposed changes. 
 
       
           John K. McNeill, Chairman 
 
           Pete Campbell, Executive Director 



Moore County Board of Commissioners 

Land Use Plan Consistency Statement 

Text Amendment - Unified Development Ordinance 

 

The Moore County Board of Commissioners finds that:  

 

1. The text amendment request is consistent with the following goals in the 2013 

Moore County Land Use Plan: 
 

GOAL 1: Preserve and Protect the Ambiance and Heritage of the County of 

Moore (inclusive of areas around municipalities).  

• Recommendation 1.5: Encourage and support development and land use 

principles by ensuring Moore County’s cultural, economical, and natural 

resources are considered appropriately. 

 

GOAL 4: Provide Information and Seek Citizen Participation: 

• Action 4.1.1: Continue to support and implement easy to understand 

guidelines to incorporate throughout governmental departments. 
 

2. The text amendment is consistent with the Goals listed above due to providing 

the public with a transparent permitting process.  

 

3. The text amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because the 

ordinance has been updated to meet current statutory requirements and be more 

user-friendly for use by the general public and development community.  
 

Therefore, the Moore County Board of Commissioners APPROVES the text 

amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance, as proposed. 

 

 

__________________________________________          _________________________ 

Frank Quis, Chair                             Date 

Moore County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Moore County Board of Commissioners  

Land Use Plan Consistency Statement 

Text Amendment - Unified Development Ordinance 

 

The Moore County Board of Commissioners finds that:  

 

1. The text amendment request is not consistent with the 2013 Moore County 

Land Use Plan.  

 

2. The proposed text amendment is not reasonable and not in the public 

interest because the proposed amendment will have an unreasonable 

impact on the surrounding community. 

 

Therefore, the Moore County Board of Commissioners DENIES the text 

amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance, as proposed. 

 

 

__________________________________________          _________________________ 

Frank Quis, Chair                             Date 

Moore County Board of Commissioners 

 



Meeting Date: October 20, 2020 

 

MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 

 

FROM: Randy Gould, PE 

  Public Works Director 

 

DATE: October 13, 2020 

 

SUBJECT: WPCP Raw Sewage Valve Replacement Project   

 

 

REQUEST: 

Authorize the Chairman to execute the Agreement with AC Schultes of Carolina, Inc. in the 

amount of $263,929.00 for the Raw Sewage Valve Replacement Project at the Water Pollution 

Control Plant (WPCP). 

 

BACKGROUND: 

The valves in the Raw Sewage Pump Station at the WPCP are inoperable and need to be 

replaced.  Bypass pumping of the influent into the plant will be required during construction.  

 

Five bids were received and AC Schultes of Carolina, Inc. was the low bidder.   

 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 

Authorize the Chair to execute the Contract with AC Schultes of Carolina, Inc. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 

This is a budgeted capital item for fiscal year 2020. The construction agreement is lump sum not 

to exceed $263,929.00.  

 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 

Motion to award and approve the agreement with AC Schultes of Carolina, Inc for the Raw 

Sewage Valve Replacement Project in the amount not to exceed $263,929 and authorize the 

Chairman to sign. 

 

Motion to allow the County Manager to approve change orders up to $20,000 per change order.   

 

SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

Bid Tab 

Agreement with AC Schultes 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.A.



Columbus Utilities, 

Inc.

Charles Underwood, 

Inc ELJ, Inc.

Valve Replacement Work $195,000.00 $225,435.00 $240,000.00

Bypass Pumping $198,200.00 $129,500.00 $108,000.00

Sales Tax $6,431.96 $24,845.45 $12,000.00

Total $399,631.96 $379,780.45 $360,000.00

BID TABULATION

INFORMAL BID 2021-04

SEPTEMBER 29, 2020



A.C. Schultes of 

Carolina, Inc. Step Construction

$167,329.00 $236,000.00

$85,000.00 $150,000.00

$11,600.00 $23,000.00

$263,929.00 $409,000.00

BID TABULATION

INFORMAL BID 2021-04

SEPTEMBER 29, 2020



FN 20-0421   

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

 

This AGREEMENT is entered into the 20th day of October, 2020, by and between the County of Moore 

(hereinafter “County”) and A.C. Schultes of Carolina, Inc. (hereinafter “Contractor”). 

 

Project:  Valve Replacement in the Raw Sewage Pump Station at the Moore County Water Pollution  

  Control Plant 

 

The Owner and Contractor agree as set forth below: 

 

ARTICLE 1. 

THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

1.1 This Agreement includes the following Contract Documents: 

 

Exhibit A – Scope of Services 

Exhibit B – Drawings include Attachments A through F 

Exhibit C – Notice to Proceed 

 

Exhibits A, B, and C are attached hereto and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.  

This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and 

supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. 

 

1.2 The Contractor will meet all requirements of the Owner as provided for by the Owner’s policies 

and specifications.  The Owner’s policies and specifications include: 

 

1. General Conditions of the Construction Contract; 

2. General Construction Standards and Specifications Manual; 

3. General Construction Details; 

4. Water Main System Standards and Specifications Manual; and 

5. Water Main Construction Details. 

 

The above referenced policies and specifications are incorporated by reference and may be found 

on the County of Moore’s website at https://www.moorecountync.gov/public-works/engineering.  

A printed copy will only be provided to the Contractor upon written request to the Owner. 

 

ARTICLE 2. 

TERM OF CONTRACT 

 

2.1 The term of this Contract will be from October 20, 2020, through March 30, 2021. 

 

2.2 This Agreement is subject to the availability of funds to purchase the specified services and may 

be terminated at any time during the term upon thirty (30) days’ notice if such funds become 

unavailable.  If this Agreement is terminated under this Section 2.2, there will be no further 

obligations by either party. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



    

FN 20-0421  

ARTICLE 3. 

THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT 

 

3.1 The Contractor shall execute the entire Work described in the Contract Documents, except to the 

extent specifically indicated in the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of others. 

 

ARTICLE 4. 

DATE OF COMMENCEMENT, COMPLETION DATE, AND 

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

 

4.1 The date of commencement is the date from which the Contract Time of Paragraph 4.2 is measured, 

and shall be the date the Notice to Proceed is issued by the Moore County Public Works Director 

immediately after the Preconstruction Conference,.  The commencement date of the Work will be 

established in writing through the Notice to Proceed, which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 

C. 

 

4.2 The Contractor shall achieve Completion of the Work no later than 14 days from the 

commencement date set forth in the Notice to Proceed.   

 

4.3 Work will be commenced with adequate forces on the date stipulated in Paragraph 4.1, above.  If 

the Project has not reached Completion by the established time for Completion, the liquidated 

damages sustained by the Owner shall be $1,000 per day.   

 

ARTICLE 5. 

CONTRACT SUM 

 

5.1 The Contractor shall receive from the Owner a sum not to exceed $263,929.00 as full compensation 

for the provision of services provided under this Agreement.  The Owner agrees to pay for the 

services, satisfactorily performed, in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 

ARTICLE 6. 

PAYMENT 

 

7.1 The Contractor shall be paid within 30 days of completion of the Work.  The Contractor shall tender 

a bill for payment. 

 

ARTICLE 7. 

INDEMNIFICATION 

 

8.1 To the fullest extent permitted by laws and regulations, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold 

harmless the Owner and its officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, damages, 

losses, and expenses, direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to fees and charges 

of engineers, attorneys, and other professionals and costs related to court action or arbitration) 

arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Contract or the actions of the Contractor or 

its officials, employees, or contractors under this Contract or under the contracts entered into by 

the contractor in connection with the work to be performed. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



    

FN 20-0421  

ARTICLE 8. 

NOTICES 

 

9.1 All notices which may be required by this contract or any rule of law shall be effective when 

received by certified mail sent to the following addresses: 

 

Owner: Moore County Public Works 

 Attn:  Randy Gould, Director  

 P.O. Box 1927 

 Carthage, NC  28327 

 

Contractor: A.C. Schultes of Carolina, Inc. 

 Attn:  Kyle Jefferys, Vice President 

 354 Sawdust Rd. 

 Rocky Point, NC  28457 

 

ARTICLE 9. 

NON-DISCRIMINATION 

 

10.1 The Contractor shall not discriminate against any person on the grounds of race, color, national 

origin, sex, age, or handicap in the administration of this Contract.  Nor shall any person be 

excluded from participation in, or be denied the benefits of any project constructed under this 

Contract on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or handicap. 

 

ARTICLE 10. 

E-VERIFY 

 

12.1 Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 143-133.3, E-verify Compliance, the Owner may not 

enter into a contract unless the contractor, and the contractor’s subcontractors under the contract, 

comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.  The Contractor 

represents and warrants that it is in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of 

the General Statutes.  Further, the Contractor warrants that any subcontractors used by the 

Contractor will be in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General 

Statutes. 

 

ARTICLE 11. 

                                         IRAN DIVESTMENT ACT 

 

The Contractor certifies that: (i) the Contractor is not listed on the Final Divestment List created by the 

State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 147-86.58 (the “Final Divestment List”). The Final Divestment List 

can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the address https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-

treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules.  Any contract in violation of this Act is void. 

 

 

ARTICLE 12. 

DIVESTMENT FROM COMPANIES BOYCOTTING ISRAEL ACT 

 

This Contractor certifies that the Contractor is not identified as an entity by the North Carolina Secretary 

of State that is engaged in a boycott of the State of Israel pursuant to NCGS, Article 6G, Chapter 147.  The 

Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-

state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules. Any contract in violation of this Act is void. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9

https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules
https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules
https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules
https://www.nctreasurer.com/office-state-treasurer/divestment-and-do-not-contract-rules


    

FN 20-0421  

 

ARTICLE 13. 

HEALTH AND SAFETY 

 

13.1 Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions 

and programs required by OSHA and all other regulatory agencies while providing services under 

this Agreement. 

 

13.2 Safety Precautions and Programs.  Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and 

supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the performance of the 

Agreement and construction of the Project. 

 

ARTICLE 14. 

NON-ASSIGNMENT 

 

14.1 This Agreement is not assignable by either party, by operation of law or otherwise. 

 

ARTICLE 15. 

MODIFICATION 

 

15.1 This Agreement may be modified only by a written agreement executed by both parties. 

 

ARTICLE 16. 

INTEGRATION 

 

16.1 This Contract sets forth the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes any and/or all 

other agreements on this subject between the parties. 

 

ARTICLE 17. 

DEFAULT 

 

17.1 In the event of any noncompliance of any term or terms of this contract by the Contractor, the 

Owner may, at its sole option, declare the Contractor in default and immediately terminate this 

contract.  Should the Owner terminate this contract due to the default of the Contractor, the Owner 

may, in addition to its other rights, contract with any other party to fulfill the Contractor’s 

obligations hereunder at the Contractor’s expense.  The Contractor shall be liable for any increase 

in cost borne by the Owner due to the default.  This shall in no way limit the Owner’s right to 

collect any other damages, whether legal, equitable or punitive, due to the default of the Contractor. 

 

ARTICLE 18. 

INSURANCE AND BONDS 

 

18.1 The Contractor shall comply with the North Carolina Workers’ Compensation Act and shall 

provide the payment of workers’ compensation to its employees in the manner and to the extent 

required by such Act.  In the event Contractor is excluded from the requirements of such Act and 

does not voluntarily carry workers’ compensation coverage, Contractor shall carry or cause its 

employees to carry adequate medical/accident insurance to cover any injuries sustained by its 

employees or agent during the performance of service. 

 

18.2 Contractor shall maintain, at its expense, the following minimum insurance coverage: 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



    

FN 20-0421  

General Liability $2,000,000 

Auto Liability $2,000,000 

Umbrella Coverage $5,000,000 

 

 Contractor agrees to furnish the Owner proof of compliance with the insurance coverage 

requirements of this Agreement upon request.  Contractor upon request by the Owner shall furnish 

a certificate of insurance from an insurance company licensed to do business in the State of North 

Carolina and acceptable to the Owner verifying the existence of any insurance coverage required 

by the Owner.  The certificate will provide thirty (30) days advance notice in the event of 

termination of cancellation of coverage. 

 

18.3 Performance Bond and Payment Bond.  The Contractor shall furnish bonds covering the faithful 

performance of the Agreement and payment of obligations arising thereunder as stipulated in 

bidding requirements or required by North Carolina law. 

 

 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering 

payment of obligations arising under the Agreement, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy 

of the bonds or shall permit a copy to be made. 

 

ARTICLE 19. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

 

19.1 Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and in accordance with the laws of the State 

of North Carolina.  All actions relating in any way to this Agreement, shall be brought in the 

General Court of Justice in the County of Moore and the State of North Carolina. 

 

19.2 Rights and Remedies.  Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and 

remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, 

rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. 

 

19.3 If any section, subsection, sentence or clause of this Contract shall be deemed to be illegal, invalid 

or unenforceable for any reason, such illegality, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the 

legality, validity or enforceability of other sections of this Contract. 

 

19.4 Priority of Documents.  In the event of any inconsistency between the Agreement and any 

attachment to the Agreement, the Agreement will have priority followed by the Contract 

Documents in the order in which they appear in Section 1.1. 

 

19.5 Waiver of Rights.  No action or failure to act by the Owner or Contractor shall constitute an 

obligation or duty afforded them under the Agreement, nor shall such action or failure to act 

constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed 

in writing. 

 

19.6 Compliance with Laws.  Contractor represents that it is in compliance with all Federal, State, and 

local laws, regulations or orders, as amended or supplemented.  The implementation of this contract 

will be carried out in strict compliance with all Federal, State, or local laws regarding discrimination 

in employment. 

  

19.7 Required Certificates.  Required certificates of testing, inspection, or approval shall, unless 

otherwise required by the Contract Documents, be secured by the Contractor and promptly 

delivered to the Engineer. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



    

FN 20-0421  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and 

year first above written. 

 

 

COUNTY OF MOORE  A.C. SCHULTES OF CAROLINA, INC. 

OWNER  CONTRACTOR 

 

 

    

Francis R. Quis, Jr., Chairman  Kyle Jefferys 

Board of Commissioners  Vice President 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Laura M. Williams 

Clerk to the Board 

 

 

Pre-Audit Certificate: 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 

Control Act. 

 

 

  

Finance Officer  

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



  EXHIBIT A 

FN 20-0421   

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

 

SPECIFICATIONS REQUIRED 

 

Contractor shall provide all labor, equipment, and material to construct the Valve Replacement in the Raw 

Sewage Pump Station at the Moore County Water Pollution Control Plant as shown on the drawings and 

specified herein.  The following valves shall be replaced: 

• Four (4) 18” Plug Valves (Suction) 

• Four (4) 14” Plug Valves (Discharge) 

• Four (4) 14” Check Valves (Discharge) 

• One (1) Gate Valve 

• One (1) 18” Blind Flange in By-Pass Connection 

• Hardware and appurtenances as needed to complete the installation 

• Bypass Pumping will be required by the Contractor 

 

Exhibit B  Attachments:   

  A. Upper Pit Floor Plan (Existing Plan) 

B. Lower Pit Floor Plan (Existing Plan) 

              C. Elevation Section (Existing Plan)  

  D. Bypass Connection  

  E.  Control Manhole 

  F.  Grit Removal Upgrade Section 

 

Completion Time:  14 Calendar Days from the Notice to Proceed with on-site construction. 

Additionally, a Notice to Proceed with ordering materials will be issued following contract execution. 

 

Liquidated Damages:  $1,000 per day after Notice to Proceed is issued for onsite construction 

 

Warranty Period: Warranty Period Shall be 12 months from the date of completion. 

 

Pre-Construction Meeting: A Pre-construction meeting will be held to begin on-site construction.   

 

Contractor Superintendent:  Provide a full-time onsite Superintendent throughout the length of the 

construction. 

 

Temporary By-pass Pumping:  Temporary Bypass Pumping will be required for the duration of the field 

construction including bypassing up the hill and replaced the 18” gate valve. Average flows are 5-6MGD, 

bypass pumps shall be sized to a peak flow of 12MGD with redundancy and plans signed by a Professional 

Engineer.   

 

Damage to Existing Facilities:  Contractor shall repair any damage caused by them to the satisfaction of 

the Owner as specified in the General Conditions below:   

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



    

FN 20-0421  

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS REQUIRED 

Handling: Contractor shall be responsible for delivering and handling of valves and equipment on site. 

There is a 4 Ton chain hoist in the motor room to transfer valves, and a 3 Ton trolley hoist in the pump 

room that may be used for installation.  

Temporary By-pass Pumping: Contractor shall provide temporary bypass pumping during the duration 

of the project. Average flows are 5-6 MGD, bypass pumps shall be sized to a peak flow of 12MGD with 

redundancy and plans signed by a Professional Engineer.  The temporary bypass pumping shall include 

the diesel-powered pump, piping and a back-up pump.  The temporary bypass pumping shall be from the 

Raw Sewage wetwell to the grit basin.  Details of these structures are included herein.   

 

Damage to Existing Facilities:  Contractor shall repair any damage caused by them to the satisfaction of 

the Owner as specified in the General Conditions.   

 

Painting:  Performed by Contractor per Moore County Standard Specifications and as specified below.  

Color shall meet industry standards.   

A. Paint manufacturer shall specialize in manufacturing of industrial coatings with minimum of 50 

years of experience and shall demonstrate upon request of the Engineer.  Tnemec coating series 

numbers are used below for quality reference only.  

B. Previously painted pipe: 

1. Surface preparation: Clean and dry surface prior to painting 

2. Full prime coat: Tnemec Series 1 Omnithane applied at 2.5-3.5 dry mils.   

3. Intermediate coat: Tnemec Series N69 Hi-Build Epoxiline II applied at 6.0-8.0 dry 

mils 

4. Finish coat: Tnemec Series N69 Hi-Build Epoxiline II applied at 6.0-8.0 dry mils 

C. Surface Preparation and Application: The latest revision of the Steel Structures Painting Council 

shall form a part of these specifications 

 

Testing: All valves and materials shall be factory tested before installation. Once complete, bypass 

pumping shall remain in place until sewage pumps are turned on and each valve inspected by the Contractor.  

 

Ductile Iron Pipe with Flanged Joints:   

A. Ductile Iron Pipe shall be as manufactured in accordance with ASTM A 746, ANSI Specification 

A21.50 and A21.51 and shall be Class 350  

B. The pipe interior shall be cement mortar lined and seal coated, standard thickness, in accordance 

with ANSI specification A21.4. 

C. The exterior of all pipe shall be prime coated suitable to receive final coating as specified in 

Moore County Standard Specifications. 

D. Pipe shall be furnished with flanged joints as indicated on the drawings in accordance with 

specifications described below: 

E. Flanged joints: The flanged pipe joint is composed of a flat steel plate shop fitted on the threaded 

end of the ductile iron pipe. The flanges shall be accurately faced at right angles to the pipe axis 

and shall be drilled smooth and true. 

I. Flanged joints shall be provided to bolt into the existing flanged piping system. 

II. Flanged joints shall be furnished with 125lb flanges drilled in accordance with ANSI 

Specification B16.1. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



    

FN 20-0421  

III. In general, flanged joints shall be made up with through bolts of the required size. 

Stud or tap bolts shall be used only where shown or required.  

IV. Gaskets for flanged joints shall be the ring type of cloth inserted rubber or rubber with 

a minimum thickness of 1/8”. 

V. Connecting flanges shall be in proper alignment and no external force shall be used to 

bring them together. Bolts and gaskets shall be furnished by the installer of piping for 

joints connecting the piping with equipment, as well as for those between pipe and 

fittings, whether such equipment and piping is furnished by the installer or not.   

 

Swing Check Valves:  

A.  Three (3”) and larger shall be of the air-cushioned swing type. The valves shall be constructed of 

heavy cast iron or cast steel designed to withstand the test pressure for the pipelines in which they 

are installed. Discs shall be of bronze or of alloy cast iron with bronze or stainless-steel disc 

rings. Pivot Pins and bushings shall be of bronze or stainless steel. Disc seats shall be replaceable. 

Swing check valves shall be American Darling, Apco or Owner approved equivalent.  

 

Plug Valves:  

A. All plug valves shall be eccentric type plug valves unless otherwise specified. Valves shall have 

an 80% port opening minimum and be of the non-lubricated eccentric type with resilient faced 

plugs and shall be furnished with end connections as shown on the plans. Flanged valves shall be 

faced and drilled to the ANSI 125/150 lb. Standard. 

B. Valve bodies shall be of ASTM A126 Class B cast iron. Bodies in 4” and larger valves shall be 

furnished with a 1/8” welded overlay seated of not less than 90% pure nickel. Seat area shall be 

raised, with raised surface completely covered with weld to ensure that the plug face contacts 

only nickel. Screwed in seats shall not be acceptable.  

C. Plugs shall be of ASTM A126 Class B cast iron. The plug shall have a cylindrical seating surface 

eccentrically offset from the center of the plug shaft. The interference between the plug face and 

body seat, with the plug in the closed position, shall be externally adjustable in the field with the 

valve in the line under pressure. Plug shall be resilient faced with neoprene or hycar, suitable for 

use with raw sewage.  

D. Valves shall have sleeve type metal bearings and shall be sintered, oil impregnated permanently 

lubricated type 316 ASTM A743 Grade GF-8M in ½”-36” sizes. Non-metallic Bearings shall not 

be acceptable.  

E. Valve shaft seals shall be of the multiple V-ring type and shall be externally adjustable and 

repackable without removing the bonnet or actuator under pressure. Valves utilizing O-ring seals 

or not-adjustable packing shall not be acceptable.  

F. Valve pressure rating shall be 175 psi through 12” and 150 psi for 14” through 72”. Each valve 

shall be given a hydrostatic and seat test of up to 200 psi with test results being certified.  

G. Manual valves shall have gear actuator with handwheels. All valves 6” and larger shall be 

equipped with gear actuators. The maximum pull on the hand wheel shall not exceed 80 lbs. All 

gearing shall be enclosed in a semi steel housing and be suitable for running in a lubricant with 

seals provided on all shafts to prevent entry of dirt and water into the actuator. The actuator shaft 

and the quadrant shall be supported on permanently lubricated bronze bearings. Actuator shall 

clearly indicate valve position and an adjustable stop shall be provided to set closing torque and 

to provide seat adjustment to compensate for change in pressure differential or flow directional 

change. All exposed nuts, bolts and washers shall be stainless steel.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



    

FN 20-0421  

H. Uniflanges are allowed in the place of one flange for ease of installation; therefore, the plug valve 

may be flange by plain end type. 

Hardware: 

All nuts, bolts and washers shall be 304 stainless steel.  Contractor to provide all hardware, gaskets, 

adapters, special fittings, etc. to complete the installation.   

 

Gate Valve:   

A. Gate valves shall conform to AWWA C-509 latest revision covering resilient seated gate valves. 

B. Gate valves shall be completely encapsulated in rubber including stem bore, shall be field 

replaceable and shall provide a dual seal on the mating body seat.  Provide vulcanized rubber 

seats permanently bonded to the wedge to meet ASTM D429 tests.  Valves shall be tested per 

ASTM C509. 

C. Valves shall be rated for sealing in both directions.  Valve wedges shall be supported throughout 

the entire open/close travel with integral guides and lugs. 

D. Valve body shall be fusion body epoxy coasted per ASTM C550 cast iron body design.  

E. Valve shall be rated for zero leakage at 200 psi working pressure.   

F. Valve shall be NRS with a handwheel.  Thrust collars shall be integral with the stem and 

machined to size.  Incorporate a stainless-steel thrust bearing, as required, to optimize operating 

torques.  Valve assembly mechanism shall be capable of withstanding an input torque of 300-ft. 

lbs. with a maximum operator pull of 80 pounds. 

G. Valve shall be furnished with 125# ASNI B16.2 flange drilling 

 

The Owner will be responsible for draining the existing raw sewage forcemain to allow the replacement 

of the 18” bypass gate valve.  Any reverse flow will be routed to Raw Sewage pumps with assistance of 

plant staff. This will be coordinated with the Contractor’s bypass pumping operation.    

 

 

ITEM QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 

Valve Replacement Work 1 LS 167,329.00 

Bypass Pumping 1 LS 85,000.00 

Sales Tax  1 LS 11,600.00 

TOTAL BID PRICE   $263,929.00 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



EXHIBIT B
DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 
 
 
 

To:        Date:   
 
 
 
 

Project:  
 
You are hereby notified to commence WORK in accordance with the agreement on or 

before and you are to substantially complete the WORK within ______ consecutive days 

and finally complete the Work within _______ consecutive days.  The date of Substantial 

Completion is therefore: _________________________ and Final Completion is 

therefore ________________________. 

 
 
 
      Owner: County of Moore 
        
      By: ____________________________ 

        Randy Gould, PE 
       
      Title: Public Works Director 
 
 
 
 
ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 
 
Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged by: 
 
__________________________________, this the ____ day of _____________, 20____. 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 
 
Title: _______________________________ 

EXHIBIT C
DocuSign Envelope ID: 663CBAA1-5D93-4FAC-A69B-44A4E02B08D9



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  10/20/2020 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 
  
DATE: 10/12/2020 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Sandhills Community Action Program Board 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Appoint member to the Sandhills Community Action Program (SCAP) Board of Directors. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Moore County resident Allison Melvin has been serving on the Sandhills Community Action 
Program Board of Directors representing her employer in Richmond County.  As that employment 
relationship has ended, Ms. Melvin can no longer represent Richmond County and had to resign from 
the SCAP Board.  Nina Walker, Executive Director for SCAP, has requested the commissioners 
consider appointing Ms. Melvin to represent Moore County.  Alternatively, the Board may appoint 
one of its own members or another representative of its choosing. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
The Clerk to the Board will provide notifications regarding the appointment. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to appoint a representative to the Sandhills Community Action Program Board of 
Directors for a three-year term. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Request from Nina Walker 
SCAP Board Roster 
SCAP Bylaws Excerpt 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
X.A.


















	AGENDA
	III.A. 10/6/20 MINUTES
	III.B. 10/8/20 MINUTES
	III.C. 10/14/20 MINUTES
	III.D. BUDGET AMENDMENTS
	III.E. DIGITAL LEARNING INVOICES
	III.F. TAX RELEASES/REFUNDS
	III.G. COOPERATIVE EXT MOU
	III.H. MCTS 5311 CARES AGREEMENT
	III.I. MORRIS PROPERTY EXTENSION
	III.J. RILEY PAVING
	III.K. GRACE PAVING
	VI.A. QUASI: LEATHERWOOD
	VII.A. HEARING: RD NAME
	VII.B. HEARING: REZONING
	VII.C. HEARING: UDO HCOD
	VII.D. HEARING: UDO QUARTERLY
	IX.A. WPCP SEWAGE VALVE
	X.A. APPTS / SCAP BOARD



